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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information
NGRS
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Financial Highlights

By %5 =

Selected Financial Data
HK$’000 (except per share data)

Revenue

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating profit
Profit for the year
Dividends

EPS - basic
DPS

Return on Equity (ROE)
Return on Assets (ROA)

BREEERE FY2006
THET(EREERDN —TTRE

HHEE
A 363,746
85 & B A 68,725
EA 295,021
KERR 174,630
N E R A 122,812
B F 125,000
BREF-EX $0.0620
BREF $0.0625
S ENEIE 14.5%
BEEDR 12.7%
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FY2007
—ETtHF
MBEE

450,147

77,573
372,574
208,315
178,781
300,000
$0.0890
$0.1500

19.9%
17.6%

Fy2008
—BENE
HREE

592,701

86,102
506,599
308,477
238,579
167,053
$0.1190
$0.0835

27.1%
23.2%

FY2009
-
MBEFEE

538,092
122,913
415,179
186,753
143,923
150,139
$0.0750
$0.0750

16.8%
14.2%

FY2010
—2-%F
BB

485,389
130,007
355,382

75,848

30,710
160,169
$0.0160
$0.0800

3.7%
3.2%
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Management Discussion & Analysis

TEEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

B %% [ B8
2010 2009 Changes
—F-%F —EENF 2E

Turnover by TihiE B D2 HK$’000 % | HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
geographical region S FET FET FEx

PRC Fh B A BE 362,899 74.8% | 395574 735%  (32,675) -8.3%
Taiwan =1 112,734 23.2% 132,299 24.6% (19,565) -14.8%
Others Hibih & 9,756 2.0% 10,219 1.9% (463) -4.5%
Total @t 485,389 100.0% 538,092 100.0% (52,703) -9.8%

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION

BB o 2 EXER

PRC | 10 I 362,899

TEIATE | oo I 305,574

Taiwan | 10 I 112,734
£ | oo G 132,200

Others | 10 Il 9,756
Hib#hE | 0o WM 10,219

During 2010, turnover of the Group dropped 9.8% to HK$485.4 million as

compared with HK$538.1 million recorded in 2009, due to a change of

trade inventory strategy where we focus more on sell-through (i.e. to the end
consumers) instead of sell-in (i.e. to our franchisees). In addition, the group
decided to exit certain product lines which resulted in the decline of product
sales. As a result, the health of inventory levels at franchisees improved, and
selling efforts at distribution channels refocused, both contributing to the

long-term positive image of the brand.

12  Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Turnover in the PRC market decreased by 8.3% from HK$395.6 million to
HK$362.9 million in 2010. The decrease in turnover was mainly due to a
reduction of HK$30.4 million in product sales. Meanwhile, service income
declined by HK$2.1 million from HK$4.5 million in 2009 to HK$2.4 million in
2010 as a result of closure of three of our loss-making self-owned spas during
2010. In Taiwan, turnover dropped 14.8% to reach HK$112.7 million in 2010
as compared with HK$132.3 million in 2009. There was also two loss-making
self-owned spas in Taiwan closed during the year. Affected customers were
transferred to independent franchisees.

Sales in other regions such as Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia decreased
slightly by 4.5% to HK$9.8 million due to closure of a self-owned spa in Hong
Kong. The turnover contribution from these regions remained insignificant and
accounted for 2% of total turnover.

Bt 7% [B] B8 @)

AR B K BE T 35 2 % 3 %8 B9 395,600,000 T
T %8.3% £ = T — & 362,900,000 Tt °
EERTRZ2IERRAEREEERD
30,400,000 e N AR AEBR =F
—EEHEAZREEEBCRERE KE
R BRI R A B = & L 4,500,000 %
JCE 242,100,000 T & = & — & £ 2,400,000
BT -AEITHEH —T-SFEEHEE
112,700,000 7t » B — & & N1 F 132,300,000
BTTHKI48% - FR AEBSEMAEGE
MEEEBFERECBELREKBERL -ZEE
EECHBIYMBEEREWR-

EB - BFAEREXRARSHMBEZHESR
TR 4.5%ZE9,800,0008 T RRBREER
EABEM—FREBELEKBEPL ZEHWE
HeEXHACERMELPMITER 8%
HEBETRE2% o

BAXENREBERR2E ZZ2—ZFFR
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continueq) Bt 7 B 8 ()
The Group’s overall gross profit margin decreased from 77.2% in 2009 to FEBEZERERENERH_ZTTNEZ
73.2% in 2010. During the year, the Group decided to discontinue some TT2%MBE_ZE—FF2732% FR» K
product lines and shift their focus to more profitable core products. As a EEAEFLEEETERRY HMEZE
result, non-cash provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory were HERNFLEENRZLER Rk SiEHE
charged to the cost of sales. If the non-cash provision for slow moving and FREGEFEZIESREIHEERAEAN
obsolete inventory of HK$27.4 million were excluded, the overall gross profit BReM A ERBHEAREFEFELEZHR
margin would be approximately 79%. S 27,400,000 T EEBREFERE
HETI% o
2010 2009 Changes
—2-%F | —TFhF 2

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 %
Turnover by activities REBEDZEXER F& T FET FET
Products Em
PRC AR K FE 360,433 390,842 (80,409) -7.8%
Taiwan =01 106,726 125,619 (18,893) -15.0%
Others Hbih B 9,237 9,484 (247) -2.6%
Total st 476,396 525,945 (49,549) -9.4%
Services Bk 7%
PRC Y PN 2,416 4,534 (2,118) 46.7%
Taiwan =0 6,008 6,680 (672) -10.1%
Others Hibibh & 519 735 (216) -29.4%
Total 45t 8,943 11,949 (3,0086) -25.2%
Entrustment EARe
PRC F B K FE 50 198 (148) -14.7%
Taiwan =91 - - - n/a7iE A
Others H b ith B - - - n/af & A
Total st 50 198 (148) -74.7%

14  Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010



Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) Bt 7 B B ()
2010 2009 Changes
—e-%F —EENE 28

REBED 2 HK$°000 % | HK$000 %  HK$'000 %
Turnover by activities = £ FHET FET FEx
Products Em 476,396 98.1% 525,945 97.7% (49,549) -9.4%
Services R 7% 8,943 1.9% 11,949 2.3% (3,006) -25.2%
Entrustment EXRE 50 0.0% 198 0.0% (148) T4.7%
Total st 485,389  100.0% | 538,092 100.0% (52,7083) -9.8%

BAXENREBERR2E ZZ2—ZFFR
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

TURNOVER BY ACTIVITIES
BEBE D 2ERE

Products | 10
Em | o9

. 8,943

Services | 10

BR7% | oo NN 11,949
Entrustment | 10 150
ZEEiEE | 09 I 198

Products

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of several types
of products, namely skin care products, beauty products, aromatherapeutic
products, color make up and health supplements, under the “Natural Beauty”
brand name. Product sales is the Group’s key revenue contributor and is
primarily made through franchise spas, self-owned spas and counters in
department stores. Products sales in 2010 amounted to HK$476.4 million,

or 98.1% of total revenue, representing a decrease of HK$49.5 million when
compared with the amount of HK$525.9 million, which accounted for 97.7%
of total revenue in 2009. The decrease in product sales was mainly due to
change of trade inventory strategy and the exit of certain product lines. Gross
margin of product sales for the year decreased from 82.8% in 2009 to 77.2%
in 2010. The decrease of product gross margin was due to the non-cash
provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory amounting to HK$27.4
million, which has been charged to the cost of sales.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010

B 7% [B] B8 ()

T 476,396
T 525,945

Em

AEEFEUBARAZ | mBREREEE
EER X7 ER - BEER TARER
EREEAERER - ERFEEALTERE
ZRHERFE TEFEMBEKERL -BE
KEKBEFOLRBEAABE - —ZF
i 88 £ 58 5 476,400,000 78 JT (S 15 B U A
98.1%) » B — & & 1 £ 525,900,000 7 7t (=,
158Uk A 97.7%) #, 2> 49,500,000 TT - E @
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

B 7% 2 B8 (@)

2010 2009 Changes
ZE-2F —EENF =)

HK$’000 % | HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Service Income PR 7% U &= FHB T FHE T FE T
Training income 3% U = 734 8.2% 1,261 10.6% (627) -41.8%
SPA service income IR R S UL &= 7,555  84.5% 9,078 76.0% (1,523) -16.8%
Management fee income EEBNR - 0.0% 32 0.3% (32) -100.0%
Others Hit 654 7.3% 1,578 13.1% (924) -58.6%
Total s 8,943 100.0% | 11,949 100.0%  (3,006) -25.2%
Services Bk %

Service income includes income from self-owned spa with services provision,
training income and management fee received from franchisees, and other
service-related income.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its self-
owned spas. The self-owned stores serve as model spas for the Group,

as the Group considers it more profitable and cost-efficient as a whole to
allocate resources to stimulate overall product sales to franchisees.

BRBURECEEBEKEKRBEFOLAEBRE W
HEORENMBENZIVERERZEUARA
fib AR 75 AE B W 25 o

FEBZEBHBEKEKETLRENEE
B-XBRKERK BEKLEKEROE

ARAEEABERLRE  RFEAFAEERS
HERARRNYEMBE - EEERHEE &
EMEREFRELAEBERRN  BEAEREN
%o

BAXENREBERR2E ZZ2—ZFFR
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Services (Continued)

Spa service income is generated solely from our self-owned spas as the
Group does not share any service income generated from franchised spas
with franchisees under the current franchise arrangement. During 2010,
service income decreased by 25.2% to HK$8.9 million when compared with
HK$11.9 million in 2009. The decrease was mainly due to the closure of six
loss-making self-owned spas during 2010.

Entrustment

Entrusted spas, which were previously operated by the Group, are owned
by the Group and operated by reputable operators. In order to have a

more efficient allocation of financial and human resources, the Group put
entrustment arrangements in place in the PRC and its self-owned spas were
entrusted to local reputable operators. The operators are responsible for
selling the Group’s products in their stores and the operators are responsible
for all the profits and losses of the operations, while the Group receives

a fixed annual entrustment fee from the operators until the Group’s initial
investment has been repaid. By then, the entrusted spas will become regular
franchised spas.

During 2010, entrustment income recorded a further decrease of 74.7%
to HK$50,000 when compared with HK$198,000 in 2009. The drop

in entrustment income was attributable to the expiration of remaining
entrustment arrangements in 2010. There was no entrusted spa as at 31
December 2010.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other income

Other income mainly comprised rental income of other properties, interest
income and financial refunds, which amounted to HK$2.8 million, HK$2.8
million, HK$9.4 million and the remaining balance respectively. Other income
decreased by 15.6%, or HK$3.3 million, from HK$20.8 million in 2009

to HK$17.5 million in 2010. The decrease was mainly due to the one-off
disposal gain of buildings in Guangzhou and Ningbo of HK$3.3 million in
2009.

Distribution and administrative expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of turnover
increased significantly to 30.2% in 2010 compared with 22.4% in 2009. Total
expenses in dollar terms increased by HK$26.5 million from HK$120.3 million
in 2009 to HK$146.8 million in 2010. During 2010, we arranged a cruise event
for approximately 1,000 of our franchisees and staff, together with over 70
media reporters and partners for a 6-day-5-night tour on a chartered cruise
to Japan and Korea, at which we launched our new concept store, new
products and made the announcement of a new incentive scheme effective
July 2010. This one-off marketing event recorded HK$10.8 million expenses.
Also, there was promotional expense on new concept stores and franchise
shop in Carrefour as well as the branding strategy investigation during 2010.
Thus, advertising and promotion expenses as a percentage of total turnover
was 13.5% in 2010, when compared with 7.7% in 2009. Other key expenses
mainly included salary, commission, travel and transportation expenses as
well as rental expenses, which amounted to HK$27.0 million, HK$1.1 million,
HK$7.8 million and HK$20.1 million respectively.

Bt 7% [B] B8 @)

H b U =

Htth =T EBEEMYEZ2RAS KR
2,800,000 7T ~ F B U & 2,800,000 % Jt & Bt
7% 3R F9,400,0008 7t R EE AR B H fh 18

B o Hih W& B === 15 20,800,000 7T
A 43,300,000 7t & = & — & £ 17,500,000
BT BIER156% - BAETEHRZ-ZZE
hWEHENRENEERZEFHER—AMK
3,300,000 T 2 W &5 FT 2k ©

PHEHETHEHA
—E-SFEAREESHERBEEERAGEE
EEOHAI02% BR-ZEENF24%5
ERR -BREET BERBA-_ZTTNE
120,300,000 3% 7T # H026,500,0008 T & = &
—Z 146,800,000 T - R=ZE—FF» K
EEEARHRETARARZEE  BE
H1I000BMBERETIURATORERT
ERECEBAETRLBERATBEE ARER-
EBMH L AEEEEHBSERETE
mOUEMRFREGTER-_Z—ZFFLAE
ER-REB-—AMTSERTEHEHEX
10,800,000 T e b4 REB - —ZFF R
REeBeH B EHERMBEETHERER
BURETREREAT At R=-F—
EEREREEHIGACEBECHILS
135% M—ZBENFAURB7T 7% HMEE
HXEETEERFS A ZRERHE
£ 8% 2 Bl &27,000,0005 5T+ 1,100,00058
7T ~ 7,800,0003% 7T % 20,100,000 7T °

BAXENREBERR2E ZZ2—ZFFR
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Distribution and administrative expenses (Continued)

Total administrative expenses in dollar terms increased by HK$15.9 million

to HK$125.0 million in 2010. Administrative expenses as a percentage of
turnover increased from 20.3% in 2009 to 25.8% in 2010. The increase in
amount and percentage was attributable to the additional salary paid to the
new management team (including chief executive officer, chief financial officer
and chief operation officer, and vice president of retail management who have
been on board since January/February and chief marketing officer joined in
July 2010). The administrative cost mainly covered staff costs and retirement
benefits, legal and professional fee, traveling expenses, depreciation, rental
charges and office and utilities expenses which amounted to HK$63.9 million,
HK$12.1 million, HK$8.4 million, HK$7.1 million, HK$14.9 million and HK$5.2
million respectively.

Other expenses

Other expenses increased from HK$19.8 million in 2009 to HK$25.2

million in 2010, representing an increase of HK$5.4 million or 27.3%. Other
expenses mainly included the one-time loss on disposal of fixed assets
due to the closure of spas which amounted to HK$8.2 million and provision
for impairment on available-for-sale investments of HK$3.9 million and
impairment loss on investment in a subsidiary amounted to HK$6.5 million.

Profit before tax

A decrease in gross profit and other income, and an increase of administrative
expenses, distribution and selling expenses and other expenses, contributed
to the decline of 59.4% in profit before tax from HK$186.8 million in 2009 to
HK$75.8 million in 2010.

Taxation

Taxation expenses increased 5.4% from HK$42.8 million in 2009 to HK$45.1
million in 2010. The effective tax rates of the Group in 2009 and 2010 were
22.9% and 59.5% respectively. The increase in effective tax rates were due
to the payment of under-provided profits tax in previous years amounting to
HK$9.1 million in 2010 and losses in certain subsidiaries were not yet tax-
deductible, while there was tax refund of HK$2.6 million recorded in 2009.
The amount also included dividend withholding tax paid or accrued in Taiwan
and PRC subsidiaries amounted to HK$7.4 million.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Profit for the year
As a result, profit for the year declined by 78.7% from HK$143.9 million in
2009 to HK$30.7 million in 2010.

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2010 was approximately
HK$173.9 million (2009: HK$154.1 million). The increase was primarily due to
changes in working capital due to the stringent control on accounts receivable
and inventory. As at 31 December 2010, the Group had bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$575.5 million (as at 31 December 2009: HK$559.3
million) with no external bank borrowing.

In terms of gearing, as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010,

the Group’s gearing ratios were zero (defined as net debt divided by
shareholders’ equity) as the Group was in net cash balance as at both year
end dates. Current ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by
current liabilities) as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 were 6.2
times and 4.6 times respectively. As at 31 December 2010, the Group had
no material contingent liabilities, other than those disclosed in its financial
statements and notes thereto. With the cash and bank balances in hand,
the Group’s liquidity position remains strong and the Group has sufficient
financial resources to finance its commitments and to meet working capital
requirements.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a pledge of bank deposit of
HK$432,000 (as at 31 December 2009: HK$430,000) in order to ensure that
one of its wholly owned subsidiaries complied with the terms stipulated in the
Tenancy Agreement which had been entered into with the landlord so as to
obtain a right of use of a self-owned store in Macau.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates

The Group derives most of its revenue denominated in Renminbi and New
Taiwan Dollars from the PRC and Taiwan as our operations are mainly
located in these two areas. As at 31 December 2010, approximately 71.4% (as
at 31 December 2009: 46.7%) of the Group’s bank balances and cash was
denominated in Renminbi, while approximately 10.3% (as at 31 December
2009: 6.8%) in New Taiwan Dollars. The remaining 18.3% (as at 31
December 2009: 46.5%) was denominated in US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollars,
Macau Pataca and Malaysia Ringgits. The Group continued to adopt a
conservative approach in terms of foreign exchange exposure management.
Review of the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk will be conducted
periodically and derivative financial instruments may be used to hedge against
such risks when necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

E 3 JEIP L

2010 2009 Changes
—E-2F | ZEENE b=

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
Turnover by geographic region R &5 2 & ¥ FET FiExT FET
PRC AR K B
Products ER 360,433 390,842 (30,409) -7.8%
Services R 7% 2,416 4,534 (2,118) -46.7%
Entrustment BT 50 198 (148) -T4.7%
PRC Total R K B 42 5T 362,899 395,574 (32,675) -8.3%
Taiwan =0}
Products E W 106,726 125,619 (18,893) -15.0%
Services bR 7 6,008 6,680 672) -10.1%
Entrustment B - - - n/afiE
Taiwan Total REMET 112,734 132,299 (19,565) -14.8%
Others Hihih &
Products =Em 9,237 9,484 (247) -2.6%
Services BR 7% 519 735 (216) -29.4%
Entrustment EREE - - - n/a7~iE A
Others Total Hipih @A 9,756 10,219 (463) -4.5%
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

PRC Market

Turnover in the PRC market dropped by 8.3% in 2010 to HK$362.9 million
compared with HK$395.6 million in 2009. The decline was mainly due to
change of trade inventory strategy from sell-in to sell-through. At the same
time, the Group decided to discontinue the business of some product lines
and re-focus on more profitable core products. Thus, non-cash provision
for slow moving and obsolete inventory of HK$12.3 million were made on
inventories and charged to the cost of sales. Product gross margin dropped
from 85.0% in 2009 to 81.9% in 2010. If these non-cash provision for slow
moving and obsolete inventory were excluded, the product gross profit
margin would be approximately 85%.

Profit before tax and net profit decreased by HK$87.0 million and HK$96.8
million respectively for the year under review.

Taiwan Market

Taiwan market also experienced similar trend as in the PRC market. During
2010, product sales in Taiwan market declined by 15% to HK$106.7 million
as compared with HK$125.6 million in 2009. Profit before tax and net profit
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Distribution channels DEERE

Franchisee

owned Spa  Self owned Total Entrusted  Self owned Total Grand
Store Number by Ownership REEEE S 2 mEE Spa Spa Counter Counter Counter Total

EHEA BB ER-F KB D BT HERE HiE 2
As at 31 December 2010 R-E-E%#+-B=+-H K K F HiE =HiE oy 5y
Taiwan = 348 7 355 - - - 355
PRC AR 1,034 4 1,038 14 33 47 1,085
Others Hitih & 33 1 34 - - - 34
Total @it 1,415 12 1,427 14 33 47 1,474
Franchises

Store Number by Ownership REEHEE S ZEHHB owned Entrusted  Self owned Total
As at 31 December 2010 R-E-ZEZF+=-A=+—H mMEEHEE EReE BERE #Et
Taiwan =9 348 - 7 355
PRC AR OER K B 1,034 14 37 1,085
Others Hibih & 33 - 1 34
Total @t 1,415 14 45 1,474
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) 3£ 7% B B @)
Distribution channels (Continued) DEEREG@E
2010 2009
Average Average
2010 2009 sales per sales per
Average Average store store
store* store | —B—ZF | ZZBFHEF
ZE2-Z2F ZEELF SEIEHE SREEH
Average sales SHEHS JE & & & Fi5 F13 Changes
per store FHEHER FIHEB* FHHE SHE® HE 25
HK$ HK$ HK$ %
BT BT BT
PRC R K BE 1,139.5 1,352.0 318,000 293,000 25,000 8.5%
Taiwan™* =) e 396.0 442.0 292,000 299,000 (7,000) -2.3%
Group total*™* e 1,635.5 1,794.0 312,000 294,000 18,000 6.1%
* Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period total)/2 R IEHEE (AT +BREF) 2t E
** Group total does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia turnover and store count.  EERTTEERERE RMARERAT2EE
BERIEHEE -
**  Taiwan sales figure excluded retail sales of “Fonperi” brand products which are sold by - AEEEEETFTEEEBTROERELEZ

different distribution channel. [Forperil R EMTEL -
AEBRZFTERBEHBEZAERPLEE
EXREESHRBEB N —ZFF+=A
=Et+t—B AKEEHEB12THAKERLR
ATEERE - BAKBERLOYRESERE &
FEAkE BHIRSGBRERUAREEEEDSN
R MBEEAREE-—RRERMUEEEED
e

The Group principally derives its income from its unique distribution channels,
namely spas and counters in department stores. As at 31 December 2010,
there were 1,427 spas and 47 counters. All spas provide a variety of services,
including hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin care analysis,
whereas counters in department stores usually provide skin care analysis.

RZE-ZEFE+ZA=1+—H HE14158
MEBXEBEFRL SAEEEELE12BKE
ALRBEEE ZSELUEEBERTETESTL

e 5 e e
EEKE

As at 31 December 2010, there were a total of 1,415 franchisee spas, and
12 spas and 33 counters directly operated by the Group. There were also 14
counters entrusted to reputable operators.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Distribution channels (Continued)

A total of 97 new stores were opened and 309 stores were closed during
the year under review. The closure was mainly due to franchisees’ violation
of franchise terms as concluded by our store audit carried out during 2010.
Franchisees who sold non-Natural Beauty products, failed to achieve
minimum targets or failed to attend our free and compulsory training
programs would have the franchise arrangement terminated. Through the
elimination of those non-compliant stores, a good and consistent franchise
network is maintained so as to ensure the service quality for consumers.

Despite the drop in sales and the number of stores, the average sales

per store in 2010 showed an improvement from HK$294,000 in 2009 to
HK$312,000 in 2010. Average sales per store in PRC in 2010 increased by
8.5% to HK$ 318,000. In Taiwan, average sales per store declined by 2.3%
to HK$292,000 in 2010.

With the change in trade inventory strategy, the inventory level in the channel
should have reduced and in turn improve the cashflow of the franchisees.

Franchised spas are owned by franchisees and are responsible for the capital
investment of their spas. They are obliged to use “Natural Beauty” or “NB”
brand for all products in their spas.

Retail Business - Fonperi

During the year under review, the Group has decided to terminate the
operation of the Fonperi brand sold through retail channels in Taiwan and
focus on its high-margin core business.
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BUS| N ESS REVIEW (Continued)

Collaboration with Carrefour in China

We had entered into a general cooperation agreement with various
subsidiaries of the Carrefour group in China (“CARREFOUR”) on 15 October
2010 to strengthen the strategic cooperation relationship in China. The
Agreement between the Group and CARREFOUR such that CARREFOUR
shall provide for lease, and the Group shall cause its franchisees to lease,
suitable premises in CARREFOUR hypermarkets and the newly opened and
existing CARREFOUR shopping malls for the retail operation of cosmetics
and beauty salon business by using the brand of “Natural Beauty”. There
were 10 Natural Beauty stores opened in CARREFOUR at the end of 2010.

Research and Development

The Group puts much emphasis on research and development so as to
maintain its competitive edge as well as improving the quality of existing
products and developing new products. The Group has been collaborating
with overseas cosmetic companies on technological development, and
biotechnology materials were imported from Europe, Japan and Australia
and applied to NB’s products. The Group’s research and development

team comprises a number of overseas consultants with experience and
expertise in cosmetics, medical, pharmacy and bio-chemistry. NB’s products
are constantly enhanced and modified with the use of new ingredients
developed by its research and development team. The Group believes that
the collaboration of experts with different expertise and experience, together
with Dr. Tsai’s over 30 years of industry experience and knowledge, will
create high quality beauty and skin care products. NB principally uses natural
ingredients to manufacture the products and adopts special formulation to
cater to the specific needs of women with delicate skin. NB’s products are
attentive to the natural metabolism of skin with long-lasting effects.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010
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BUS'NESS REVIEW (Continued)

Research and Development (Continued)

NB has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human genome
and stem cell technology, in the development of anti-aging NB-1 product
family and other products for spot removing, whitening, anti-allergy and
slimming. With Dr. Tsai’s over 30 years of experience in the beauty and

skin care industry and the strong professional portfolio of our research and
development staff members, NB enjoys competitive advantages in the
research and development of beauty and skin care products.

Flagship Products

Our flagship product, NB-1 products family includes anti-aging NB-1 series,
NB-1 Whitening series, NB-1 anti-allergy, NB-1 pore refining series, etc.
During 2010, over 361,000 sets/ bottles (2009: 331,000 sets/bottles) of
NB-1 family products were sold with a turnover of HK$180.4 million (2009:
HK$210.8 million), accounting for more than one-third of total product sales
recorded during the period under review.

During 2010, the Group continued to enrich the product range and launched
11 new products for NB-1 series, 7 new products for aromatherapeutic
products and 7 new health supplement products in PRC.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a total of 948 employees, of whom
782 were based in the PRC, 157 in Taiwan and 9 in other areas. Total
remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2010 was approximately
HK$122.6 million (2009: HK$108.7 million), including retirement benefits
cost of HK$14.2 million (2009: HK$12.6 million). Competitive remuneration
packages are maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable staff and are
reviewed on a regular basis.

The Group’s chief executive officer, chief financial officer/chief operation
officer and vice president of retail management have been on board since
January/February 2010. The chief marketing officer also reported to duty
in July 2010. Leveraging the extensive franchise network management and
beauty industry experience of the new management team, the Group is
confident of the future development of its business.

The Group maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to
offering them training. Professional training courses are offered to beauticians
employed by the Group and to our franchisees on a regular basis, so as to
promote and maintain the quality and consistency of the services provided.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Capital Expenditures

The Group’s major capital expenditures were related to self-owned spas,
office renovation, IT infrastructure and machinery in its factories. There were
HK$37.2 million additions to fixed assets in 2010 (2009: HK$17.1 million),
which comprising the new factory in PRC region amounted to approximately
HK$22.2 million.

In December 2010, we moved our old Fengxian skin care plant to a new
industrial development zone within Fengxian. The new plant is set up at GMP
standard so as to upgrade the quality of our skin care products. Meanwhile,
with the new production floor layout and consolidation of our production
capacity, production productivity will improve. The production at the new
plant commences in first quarter of 2011.

Franchisees are responsible for the capital expenditures of their spas.

OUTLOOK

As the PRC government’s efforts to develop the domestic demand market
are in full force, China’s urbanization continually advances and the high-speed
growth of disposable income per capita in the urban population continues,
we have an optimistic outlook on the PRC’s beauty and spa market.

In 2010, we focused on redefining new retail business model, conducting
major house cleaning up and building the team and infrastructure. The
progress we made in 2010 has built a solid foundation for a rapid growth in
2011 and beyond.

Based on the successful launch of new concept store in 2010, we will
continue to focus on adding new concept stores in 2011.
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Report on Corporate Governance

J/J'_\Hkk\z‘\-’Fﬁm

The Board and management of the Company are committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. The Board had adopted Corporate
Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”) (available on website:
www.nblife.com/ir) which gives guidance on how corporate governance
principles are applied to the Company.

The Company applied the principles and compiled with all the code provisions
set out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The following
summarises the Company’s corporate governance practices and explains
deviations, if any, from the Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to

continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.

A. Directors

ARB2EEZERERERNERES K
E2r¥ER- EZTETCHEMNEEER
=S A [ —rEJJJ R E R
www.nblife.com/ir) FA MR ADFE
At¥ERR \,\H’IEHHE @I

ARBEAREBETERBHUEXZMERLRA
(TEexXPr ))& 2 £ 48 B (T £ v A% R B 8%
THOFRBEXERFRTUCTRD 2 RA
RABEFEMBRL - UTHAARR 2EXE
EEARGBARBETRZER@A) -

BRESTEREZEREN ARARFETEHEF
BURZERA R EARKEEN  BRALQ
AR ERER -

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE FTEBH
A EE
A1. The Board Al. EEE
Details of Directors’ attendance records in 2010 are as follows: EEN_E-ZEEJEHEBEIRHEISBN
T
Remuneration Audit Executive
Committee Committee Committee Board
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
¥MEEE BHRZEE HTZEE Ezg
= = =E =
Executive Directors HIEE

Dr. TSAI'Yen-Yu (Note 1) EREB/T(HE) 11 n/aFEH 2/3 5/5
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta THELE n/a TEA n/aT @ n/aER 5/5

Non-Executive Directors FHITEE
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Note 2) BEEaEL(HE2) 11 2/2 11 4/5
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Note 3) BEndL (Mg 11 n/afE A 4/4 5/5
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT mESLE 2/2 /a8 A 4/4 5/5
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK Gregory Michael ZELUCK % 4 11 n/aTEH 4/4 5/5
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan BEnZt n/atiER n/aTER n/afEf 5/5
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina REELL n/afiE M 2/2 n/aiE A 5/5
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

A.

Directors (Continued)
ATl. The Board (Continued)

<F E 2 )

A EEm@E

Al. EFE(4#)

Remuneration Audit Executive
Committee Committee Committee Board
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
FMEEE BRZEEE HTZEE Ezg
| E = EE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTEE

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER (Note 4) Francis GOUTENMACHER % 4 (Hff z£4) n/aiE A 2/2 3/3 4/4
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (Note 4) BEEZL (M 0 2/2 /e[ 3/4
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Note 4) [t T 1/1 2/2 n/aT @A 4/4
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (Note 4) B IEE MY n/afEA 2/2 3/3 4/4
Mr. YEH Liang-Fei (Note 5) ERELE (MED 11 n/a @ n/afEf n/af @R
Mrs. CHEN SHIEH Shu-Chen (Note 5) B#RY 2+ (M5 11 n/afiE A n/a™Ef n/afiEfA
Mr. CHEN Ching (Note 5) BB L E (D) 11 n/aTEH n/aiE A n/aTiEH

Notes: MiaE:

(1) Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu was appointed as a member of executive committee

and remuneration committee on 1 February 2010.

(2)  Dr. SU Chien-Cheng was redesignated as a Non-Executive Director,
resigned as a member of executive committee and remuneration
committee, and was appointed as a member of audit committee on

1 February 2010.

(8)  Dr. SU Sh-Hysu was appointed as a member of the executive
committee with effect from 24 November 2009, resigned as a
member of audit committee and was appointed as a member of the
remuneration committee on 1 February 2010.

(4)  Appointed on 1 February 2010.

(5)  Resigned on 1 February 2010.

Directors are consulted to include any matter in the agenda for

regular Board meetings.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. The Company aims
at giving reasonable notice generally for all other Board meetings.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)
A. Directors (Continued)
ATl. The Board (Continued)
All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and advises the Board on corporate governance and compliance
matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings and its committee’s (“Board Committee”) meetings,
which would be sent to Directors within a reasonable time (generally
within 14 days) after each meeting and would be made available
for inspection by Directors and Board Committee members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held for
any material transactions with connected persons. Independent
Non-Executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such
meeting.

The Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) provide
for voting and quorum requirements conforming with the Code
requirements.

A2. Chairman, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu serves as the Chairman, while Mr. Gregory
Michael ZELUCK and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta were appointed as the
vice-chairmen. Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK ceased to act as the
vice-chairman and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT was appointed
as the vice-chairman of the Company with effect from 1 February
2010. Mr. TSENG Hsin Sheng John serves as the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 4 January 2010. The Chairman focuses on
Group strategic and Board issues while the Chief Executive Officer

has the overall responsibility for operations and development.

The Chairman has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board’s
responsibilities.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TtEERBE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

A. Directors (Continued)
A2. Chairman, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Continued)
The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors. (See
Section A6 — “Supply of and access to information” for further
details)
A3. Board composition
Composition of the Board, by category of Directors, including
names of the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-Executive Directors are disclosed in all corporate
communications.

There are four Independent Non-Executive Directors out of twelve
directors, representing one-third of the board.

A4. Appointments, re-election and removal
Directors with service contracts, including Executive and Non-
Executive Directors, usually serve three-year terms, and are subject
to re-election. Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Mr. Patrick Thomas
SIEWERT, Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina, Ms. FENG Janine
Junyuan did not enter into service contracts with the Company.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s articles of
association, any new director appointed shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s
articles of association, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then a number
not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting. Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr.
Gregory Michael ZELUCK and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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TtEERBE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

A. Directors (Continued)

<F E 2 B )
A. EEH)
A5, EEBE

Ab. Responsibilities of Directors
On appointment, new Directors will be given a comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal counsel, to explain the
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are members of the
Audit Committee. Individual Independent Non-Executive Directors
are also members of Remuneration Committee or Executive
Committee.

There was satisfactory attendance for Board and Board Committee
meetings in 2010.

Throughout the year, Directors complied with the required
standards of the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the
Directors and members of senior management, which set out

(@) the principal continuing obligations of the Company and the
Directors as a result of the listing of the securities of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and (b) the systems
and procedures that the Company, its Directors and senior
management should follow in order to ensure compliance with
such obligations.

A6. Supply of and access to information
Board papers were sent to all Directors at least three days before
the date of the Board/Board Committee meeting.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and
other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

B. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
B1. The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee. Full
terms of reference are available on the Company’s website:
www.nblife.com/ir.

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT was appointed as a member of

the remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 24
November 2009. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, Mr. Yeh Liang Fei, Mrs.
CHEN SHIEH Shu Chen and Mr. CHEN Ching resigned and Dr.
TSAl Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Mr.
CHEN Ruey-Long and Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON were appointed
as the members of the remuneration committee of the Company
with effect from 1 February 2010. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng ceased to
be a member of the remuneration committee of the Company with
effect from 1 February 2010.

With reference to the remuneration committee charter, each
committee member had carefully reviewed and considered the
terms of the service contracts during the year, contribution of each
of the Directors to the Group, the Directors’ experience in the
beauty and spa business and the market rate paid by comparable
companies.

Independent professional advice will be sought to supplement
internal resources where appropriate.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

n Corporate Governance
S B A
A E

C. Accountability and Audit
C1. Financial reporting

c2.

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans

and actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and preparing accounts of each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2010, the Directors

have:

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Report of the Auditors on page 63.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as to information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards which are issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting

policies;

made judgements and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable;

prepared the accounts on going concern basis.

Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. Management regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and system of
internal controls and compliance with best practices. The Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer also report to the
Audit Committee on key findings regarding internal controls. The
Audit Committee, in turn, communicates any material issues to the

full Board.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued) <F E 2 B )

C. Accountability and Audit (Continued) C. BERER®

C2. Internal controls (Continued) C2. [ 28 & 72 (&)

The Board’s review will also consider the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

During the year, the Board has conducted reviews of the internal
control system and considered the internal control system of the
Group has been implemented effectively.

C3. Audit Committee

Draft minutes prepared by the Company Secretary are sent to
members within 14 days of each meeting. None of the Audit
Committee members is former partners of the external auditors.
Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) are available on
the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in turn
endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming AGM, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be reappointed as
the external auditors for 2011.

During 2010, the Group paid or accrued to the auditor HK$2.8
million for 2010 statutory audit services of the Company. The
Group did not receive any non-audit services from the auditors
during 2010.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external
auditors.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TEERWRSE
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (Continued) FE 2
D. Delegation by the Board D. EXEE2X®
D1. Management functions D1. EFE B g
There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board MNEBFE2RESFTERARZEER
decision, including: EHBEIX BF:
- Long-term objectives and strategies; - RHBERZEBK;
- Extension of group activities into new business areas; - EREBEBZEHEKES
- Preliminary announcements of interim and final results; - NS AHMHPHRRBPES,
- Material banking faciltties; - ERBITHE:
—  Material acquisitions and disposals; - BRUBREE;
- Material connected transactions; and - BERBEEXRZ K
- Annual internal controls assessment. - FERABEEEFTMG-
D2. Board Committees D2 EEZEE
The Board has established three Board Committees (Audit EESCRIEREES FHE
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee) ESRHTEESE=-REEZE
with specific terms of reference available at the Company’s e BESETRAARLNTRILERH
website: www.nblife.com/ir. www.nblife.com/ir °
Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board EEZEENBARABESERT
after each meeting, which reports address their work and findings. ERBERNEETERE -
E. Communication with Shareholders E. EERREBE
E1. Effective communication E1. BB
Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each RELRSERBILSEEIIEESE
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual YRBER BEAEAINESEE
Directors.
Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Committees or their EEEIRREZEESERRHE
respective delegates are requested to attend the forthcoming EEERREXRELEERRRA
AGM. FRE-
There was one AGM held since the issue of last annual report. BE—fFHRT ARG RIT—
TERBEKRE -
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

E. Communication with Shareholders (Continued)
E1. Effective communication (Continued)

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, the Chairperson of the Company, was unfit
to travel under medical advice (due to tooth implant) and was
unable to attend the Company’s 2010 AGM held on 24 May
2010 in person. The Board had arranged for Mr. Patrick Thomas
SIEWERT, the Vice-Chairman of the Company and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Group, who is well versed in all the
business activities and operations of the Group, to attend on her
behalf and to chair the meeting and to respond to shareholders’
questions.

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, also attended the AGM.

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir to provide comprehensive
information related to shareholders.

E2. Voting by poll
Procedures for demanding a poll were set out in the notice of AGM
during the year. These procedures were also explained during the
AGM proceedings.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited was appointed as scrutineer during the AGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the meetings
and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that of the
Company at www.nblife.com/ir.

ADDITIONAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AREAS

Institutional shareholder communications

We consider it is important to have dialogues with institutional shareholders
based on mutual understanding of objectives.

We were also awarded a “Certificate of Excellence for IR websites in Hong
Kong” by Investor Relations Global Ranking (IRGR) in 2010.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor relations
section of the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.
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Management Profile
BIEEEE

CHAIRWOMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
DR. TSAI YEN YU (ALIAS TSAI YEN PIN) (“DR.
TSAI”)

Aged 63, the founder and the Chairperson of the Group. Dr. Tsai has been
awarded numerous honours, positions and prizes such as:

e Honorary Doctor of Commerce, Dewey University, the USA

e Fellowship of Asian Knowledge Management Association

e Female Entrepreneur Award by Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the Year”

e Taiwan’s Top Ten Most Influential Female Entrepreneur awarded by
CommonWealth Magazine

e QOutstanding Entrepreneurs of Taiwan awarded by Taiwan Women’s
Business Association

e “Top 100 Chinese Entrepreneurs” of China

e “Bai Yu Lan” Award by the Shanghai City Government

e Principal consultant in the Chinese Ministry of Labor and the programme
“Ji Qing Chuang Ye” of CCTV

e Principal consultant of cosmetology arbitration panel in the Chinese
Ministry of Law

e 1 Pacemaker Award and Education Award of Beauty and Cosmetics
Industry in China

e Chairman of Association of Beauty Technique in Taipei

e (Chairman of Association of Beauty and Hairstyle in Taiwan

VICE CHAIRMAN/EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MR.
LEE MING-TA

Aged 63, is the Vice Chairman and an executive director of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: DR. SU CHIEN
CHENG

Aged 39, the son of Dr. Tsai Yen-Yu (Chairperson and an executive director)
and Mr. Lee Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman and an executive director) and he is

the elder brother of Dr. Su Sh-Hsyu who is also a non-executive director of
the Company. Dr. Su was an executive director and re-designated as non-
executive director on 1 February 2010. Dr. Su graduated from the University
of Westminster in UK with a master degree of business administration and
obtained his PhD in Business Administration in Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics. He joined the Group in 1999.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: DR. SU SH-HYSU

Aged 37, is the daughter of Dr. Tsai Yen-Yu (Chairperson and an executive
director) and Mr. Lee Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman and an executive director) and
the younger sister of Dr. Su Chien-Cheng, is also a non-executive director of
the Company. Dr. Su was an executive director and re-designated as non-
executive director on 24 November 2009. Dr. Su Sh-Hsyu graduated from the
London School of Economics with a Master of Science degree in industrial
relations, personnel management and human resources management and
obtained her PhD in international and comparative education from Columbia
University in New York, United States. Dr. Su Sh-Hsyu had been actively
engaged in the marketing and business development of the Natural Beauty
Group in Taiwan and China during the period from 2004 to 2009.

VICE CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR: MR. PATRICK THOMAS SIEWERT

Aged 55, is currently a senior director of Carlyle based in Hong Kong. Mr.
Siewert has been working at Carlyle since April 2007. Mr. Siewert currently
sits on the board of directors of a variety of companies in which funds of
Carlyle have investments, including, without limitation, C.P. Pokphand
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 43) China Fishery Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore (Stock code: BOZ) and Zhejiang
Kaiyuan Hotel Management Co., Ltd. Mr. Siewert also sits on the board of
directors of Avery Dennison Corporation, a company listed on the New York
Stock Exchange (Stock code: AVY) and Computime International Limited,

a company listed on the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 320). Mr. Siewert has also been the chairman of Eastern Broadcasting
Company Limited since August 2008. Prior to joining Carlyle, Mr. Siewert
worked at The Coca-Cola Company from 2001 to 2007 as group president
and chief operating officer Asia, and was previously president of Kodak
Professional and senior vice president of Eastman Kodak Company. Mr.
Siewert received a Master of Science degree in service management from
Rochester Institute of Technology and a Bachelor of Science degree in
business administration from Elmhurst College. He was appointed as the
Group’s non-executive director on 24 November 2009 and Vice Chairman on
1 February 2010.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: GREGORY
MICHAEL ZELUCK

Aged 49, is currently a managing director of Carlyle and is a co-head of

the Fund. Mr. Zeluck has been working at Carlyle since July 1998 and

has been a managing director since that time. At Carlyle, Mr. Zeluck has
overseen investments in a variety of companies across Asia, including,
without limitation, Taiwan Broadband Communications Co., Ltd, Eastern
Broadcasting Company Limited, Pacific China Holdings Limited, kbro Co.,
Ltd., Ta Chong Bank Limited and Natural Beauty. Mr. Zeluck currently sits
on the board of directors of a number of companies in which funds of Carlyle
have investments, including, without limitation, Caribbean Group, Hyundai
Communications & Network Co. Limited, Eastern Broadcasting Company
Limited, kbro Co., Ltd. and Ta Chong Bank Limited, a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange (Stock code: 2847). Prior to joining Carlyle,

Mr. Zeluck worked in Merrill Lynch’s Asian high yield team and spent 13
years in Lehman Brothers’ corporate finance and merchant banking groups,
approximately four of which were spent in Asia. Mr. Zeluck received a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Princeton University, graduating magna cum
laude in East Asian studies. He was appointed as the Group’s non-executive
director on 24 November 2009.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MS. NG SHIEU-
YEING CHRISTINA

Aged 38, is currently a director of Carlyle based in Hong Kong. Ms. Ng has
been working at Carlyle since 1998 and has been a director since January
2006. At Carlyle, Ms. Ng has overseen investments in, among others, Taiwan
Broadband Communications Co., Ltd, Eastern Broadcasting Company
Limited, China Pacific Insurance (Group) Company Limited, kbro Co., Ltd.
and Natural Beauty. Prior to joining Carlyle, Ms. Ng was an associate with
Exor Asia, the direct investment arm of the Agnelli Group of Italy from 1997 to
1998. Ms. Ng received a Bachelor of Science degree in management science
from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. She was appointed as the
Group’s non-executive director on 24 November 2009.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MS. FENG
JANINE JUNYUAN

Aged 42, is currently a managing director of Carlyle based in Hong Kong

and is focused on Asian buyout and growth capital investments in sectors
including consumer, financial services, industrial and healthcare. Ms. Feng
has been working at Carlyle since 1998, and has been responsible for several
investments in China. Ms. Feng currently serves as a director of China Pacific
Insurance (Group) Company Limited. Prior to joining Carlyle, Ms. Feng was

a senior associate at Credit Suisse First Boston’s investment banking group
in New York. Ms. Feng received a Master of Business Administration degree
from Harvard Business School and a Bachelor of Arts degree, summa cum
laude and Phi Beta Kappa, from Middlebury College. She was appointed as
the Group’s non-executive director on 24 November 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
FRANCIS GOUTENMACHER

Aged 69, had worked closely with some of the most prestigious names in the
business, including Cartier, Van Cleef & Arpels, Piaget, Vacheron Constantin,
Alfred Dunhill and Jaeger-LeCoultre, etc. He had also been the Managing
Director of Cartier France, the CEO of Piaget International, and the President
of The Hong Kong Watch Importers’ Association from 2004 to 2006. Mr.
Goutenmacher was also the former CEO of Richemont Asia Pacific, one

of the world’s leading luxury groups and in 20086, retired from Richemont

and established Gouten Consulting Limited to help luxury brands with their
marketing and strategic development of their luxury brands in the challenging
and rapidly emerging market of Asia-Pacific. Mr. Goutenmacher is currently
an independent non-executive director of I.T Limited, whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a director of Gouten
Consulting Limited, an advisor to several local luxury groups, and sits on the
board of directors of several non-listed companies. He was appointed as the
Group’s independent non-executive director on 1 February 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
SU-MEI THOMPSON

Aged 44, obtained her Master of Business Administration (Dean’s List)
degree from IMD in Lausanne, Switzerland, a first-class Masters degree in
law from Oxford University, England and a BA degree in law from Cambridge
University, England and is a UK qualified solicitor. Ms. Thompson is currently
the Chief Executive Officer of The Women’s Foundation, a leading Non-
Government Organisation promoting the advancement of women in Hong
Kong. Previously, she held senior regional management positions at Walt
Disney Television Asia-Pacific where she was Regional Director of Legal

& Business Affairs, the Financial Times where she served as Managing
Director for Asia and was a member of the FT’s Global Management Board,
and Christie’s where she was Senior Vice-President, Strategic Business
Development for Asia. She started her career as a corporate finance lawyer
at Linklaters and served in the firm’s London, Paris and Hong Kong offices.
Ms. Thompson is a Co-founder and Advisory Board Member of Intelligence
Squared Asia and a Corporate Member of The Cheltenham Ladies College
in the United Kingdom. She was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Group on 1 February 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
CHEN RUEY-LONG

Aged 62, obtained his Bachelor degree of Economic from National Chung-
Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry of Economic
Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held various positions
and represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan in various
countries and was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in Belgium
from 1974 to 1979. Mr. Chen was the Board Chairman of the Institute for
Information Industry in Taiwan from 2008 to 2009, and he is currently the
Board Chairman of SINOCON Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan,
the Board Chairman of Teknowledge Development Corp. in Taiwan, a board
member of SICDC Ltd. & SICDC Vision Technology Ltd. in BVI, a member
of the Advisory Board of Newport Digital Technologies,Inc. in USA and an
independent director of Bank of Panhsin in Taiwan. He was appointed as the
Group’s independent non-executive director on 1 February 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
YANG TZE-KAING

Aged 56, obtained his Master of Business Administration degree from
University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign, USA in 1982 and his PhD in
Strategic Management from National Chengchi University of Taiwan in 1987.
He is currently a professor of the Department of Business Administration

in National Chengchi University, the Chairman of Yangtze Associates,

the President of Huiyang Private Equity Fund Co., Ltd., the Supervisor of
ASUSTeK Computer Inc., a director of RITEK Corporation, an independent
director of ASROCK Incorporation. Mr. Yang was also the Deputy Minister
of the Ministry of Finance of Taiwan, the Managing Director and Acting
Chairman of Bank of Taiwan, the President of China Development Industrial
Bank of Taiwan and an associate professor in National Chengchi University
and National Chiao Tung University. He was appointed as the Group’s
independent non-executive director on 1 February 2010.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: JOHN HSIN
SHENG TSENG

Aged 61, joined the Group as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from

4 January 2010. Mr. Tseng graduated from American Graduate School of
International Management (Thunderbird), USA with a Master in Business
Administration in 1982. He was the Chairman and President, Greater China
of The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company from 2005 to 2008. Prior to that,
Mr. Tseng had been working in Eastman Kodak Company from 1982 to
2005, and had served as the General Manager and Corporate Vice President
of Consumer and Professional Imaging in Greater China and Greater Asia
regions from 2000 to 2005.

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER AND CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER: CHAN YIU WING

Aged 54, joined the Group as the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer in February 2010. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong
Kong with a Master in Business Administration in 1990 and a Bachelor of
Social Sciences in the same university in 1979. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Chan was the China General Manager of Evergreen Packaging. Prior to
that, Mr. Chan had been working in Eastman Kodak Company from 1980 to
2007, and held broad spectrum of senior positions in general management,
sales and marketing, finance, operations, product development and project
management including the Regional Operations Director for North Asia, China
General Manager for Consumer and Professional Imaging and Regional
Business Director for Greater Asia Region.
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VICE PRESIDENT OF RETAIL MANAGEMENT:
LEE MENG HOE, ANTONIO

Aged 49, joined the Group as the Vice President of Retail Management with
effect from 5 January 2010. Mr. Lee graduated from the National Chengchi
University in Taiwan with a Bachelor in Business Administration. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Lee had been working in Eastman Kodak Company,
and held broad spectrum of senior positions in general management of Kodak
and Key Account, Greater Asia Regional Director of Kodak Express Franchise
Program. He also worked for Unilever (Taiwan) Company Limited, Circle K
Convenience Store (Taiwan) Limited and a subsidiary of Li & Fung (Retailing)
Limited with senior positions of product manager, marketing manager and
executive director of these companies with extensive experience in franchise
store development and management.

CHIEF MARKETING OFFICER: TAI YIM TING
SHIRLEY

Aged 46, joined the Group as Chief Marketing Officer with effect from 1 July
2010. Ms. Tai graduated from University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of
Arts degree and obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree jointly issued by Kellogg Management Institute and Hong Kong
University of Science & Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Tai had
been working as the General Manager of Reckitt Benckiser in Hong Kong &
Taiwan region, the General Manager of Estee Lauder Hong Kong and Clinique
China of Estee Lauder Inc. and was the Vice-President of Non-Carbonated
Beverage Division, Pepsi Beverages International Greater China, with over 17
years of marketing and management experience in Greater China Region and
good exposure in cosmetics industry.

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER AND COMPANY
SECRETARY: CHAN YAN KWAN ANDY

Aged 42, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr.
Chan is responsible for the financial planning and monitoring. He graduated
from the University of Hull in the UK with a bachelor’s degree in economics
(economics and accounting) in 1992 and graduated from Richard Ivey School
of Business with University of Western Ontario, Canada with an Executive
MBA in 2008. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, and a holder of Practitioner’s Endorsement
certificate issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Prior to joining the Group in July 2004, Mr. Chan worked in an international
accounting firm and had served senior financial positions in a NASDAQ listed
company and a renowned German exhibition company.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHESE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty and
aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin treatments, beauty and
spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 65.

An interim dividend of HK$0.035 per share amounting to HK$70,074,000
was paid to the shareholders during the year. The directors now recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.045 per share to the shareholders
on the register of members on 13 May 2011, amounting to approximately
HK$95,095,000. Details of the dividends are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover
and purchases for the year respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2010 were fair valued by
an independent firm of professional property valuers. The fair value increase
of approximately HK$62,000 has been recognised in profit or loss. Details of
movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu

(alias Dr. Tsai Yen Pin)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta

(alias Mr. Lee Ming Tah)

Non-executive directors:
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (redesignated as a non-executive

director on 1 February 2010)

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan

Independent non-
executive directors:

fi% 7K
KATARFANRAESHFBHANGES WK
MEMEE25 -

mE
RENRBEARENRAS FAAAES
W

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER

Ms. Su Mei THOMPSON

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing

Mr. YEH Liang-Fei

Mrs. CHEN SHIEH Shu-Chen

Mr. CHEN Ching

(appointed on 1 February 2010)

(appointed on 1 February 2010)

(appointed on 1 February 2010)

(appointed on 1 February 2010)

(resigned on 1 February 2010)

(resigned on 1 February 2010)

(resigned on 1 February 2010)
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s articles of association, one-
third of the Directors or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting. Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr. Gregory
Michael ZELUCK and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES AND VICE CHAIRMEN

The Company has established an audit committee, remuneration committee
and executive committee.

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and Ms. NG Shieu-Yeing Christina were appointed as
members of the audit committee of the Company with effect from 24
November 2009. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr. Yeh Liang-Fei, Mrs. CHEN SHIEH Shu-
Chen and Mr. CHEN Ching resigned and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr.
YANG Tze-Kaing were appointed as the members of the audit committee of
the Company with effect from 1 February 2010.

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT were appointed as
members of the remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 24
November 2009. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, Mr. Yeh Liang-Fei, Mrs. CHEN SHIEH
Shu-Chen and Mr. CHEN Ching resigned and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Sh-
Hsyu, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Ms. Su Mei
THOMPSON were appointed as the members of the remuneration committee
of the Company with effect from 1 February 2010.
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND VICE CHAIRMEN
(Continued)

An executive committee of the Company was established in 2009. Dr. SU
Chien-Cheng, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT and Mr.
Gregory Michael ZELUCK were appointed with effect from 24 November
2009. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng resigned and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing were appointed as members
of the executive committee of the Company with effect from 1 February
2010, to which the Board will, until it otherwise determines, delegate such
powers, authorities and discretions as may from time to time be approved
by the Board, including, without limitation, all of the powers, authorities
and discretions to consider the strategic direction of the Group and review
the monthly business and financial performance of the Group and the

implementation and execution of the business plan and annual budget of the

Group.

Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta were appointed as vice-

chairmen of the Company with effect from 24 November 2009. Mr. Gregory

Michael ZELUCK resigned and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT was appointed

as the vice chairman of the Company with effect from 1 February 2010.

The compositions of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the executive committee of the Company as well as the vice chairmen of the
Company upon the last changes with effective from 1 February 2010 and as
of date of this report are set out below:
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ERVTEZEEREURAQFAREFRT
LU

Audit Remuneration Executive Vice
Name of Director Director Committee = Committee = Committee Chairmen
BEspg EZER BREEE FMEEE HTZEEE BERE
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu BEEEL ED Y Y
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta ZHELE ED Y
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng BEgEt NED Y
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu BEmEt NED Y Y
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT EEEEE NED Y Y Y
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK Gregory Michael ZELUCK 5t 4 NED Y N
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan BETLL NED
Ms. NG Shieu-Yeing Christina REELT NED Y
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER Francis GOUTENMACHER %t £ INED Y Y
Ms. Su Mei THOMPSON BRELT INED Y Y
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long g1 INED Y Y
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BFIEE INED Y Y
ED: Executive Director ED:®TESE

NED: Non-Executive Director

INED: Independent Non-Executive Director
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EETEHREE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders were
approximately HK$237,997,000 which represents the share premium and
retained profits of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors’ service contracts entered into between the Company and

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta and Dr. Su Chien-Cheng with a term of
three-year were expired on 10 March 2011 and were renewed on the same
terms but only for the period from 11 March 2011 to 31 December 2011. The
director’ service contract entered into between the Company and Dr. SU Sh-
Hsyu was expired on 20 September 2010 and was renewed for a period of
three-year on the same terms. The directors’ service contracts entered into
between the Company and each of the independent non-executive directors,
namely, Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr.
CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing, were for a term of three years
commencing on 1 February 2010.

These service contracts may be terminated by either party giving to the other
one to three calendar months’ notice in writing.

There was no service contract entered into between the Company and each
of Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Ms. FENG
Janice Junyuan and Ms. NG Shieu-Yeing Christina.

The initial annual remuneration pursuant to such service contracts are
summarised as follows:

N B A 2K fE

R-F-FE+=A=+—A FAAESP
2R AANTHIETREZHENS
237.997,000% 7 - 2 BB TR 2 7 2 1 9

HERAREB R -

EERBEL

AATREHREIBELT THELERGEN
Bl YU EERBANAB=F - BR=
Z-——F=At+HER LERERKIRE
HOEFHER-_Z——F=A+—HEZE
—E-——F+ZA=+—HIlE - AP FHEEK
HEBLII U CESESREEGHNER -
EEAAZt+HER YORERKRE
B=5F o N E B & B 3 I # 1T E = Francis
GOUTENMACHER 4 - BEZB &+ - Bk E
EERBIIAETUZEERBANED
A= -ZF_F—HMKB AH=F-

ZERBENTHEMN—FTRAELTEELEFTD
REZBEEANBEBSEKL-

7K F) 30 4% B i 4 18 5% & - Gregory Michael
ZELUCKA A - BERLZTRRFELTE
BrIARBEEH -

REZERBEY ALFEMSMANT :

Annual

Annual increment on Discretionary
Name of Director Director type director fee director fee bonus
Ex=pgs EXH SEEZHe ESHSFEIEE BB RA
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu BEEELT ED $1,000,000  Note (2)Hf#X(@  Note (b)Hf & (b)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta HERE L4 ED $700,000  Note (@)Kt #X(@)  Note (0)Fff &% ()
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng HEAEL NED $600,000  Note (a)f#X(@  Note (b)Hf 3 (b)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu BamEt NED $600,000  Note (a)Mf#X(@  Note (b)Hf & (b)
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER  Francis GOUTENMACHER % £ INED $240,000 N/AT i A N/AT & A
Ms. Su Mei THOMPSON BEELZ+L INED $240,000 N/AT & A NATE A
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BRI 2 £ INED $240,000 NATE F NATE A
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BFIIEE INED $240,000 NATE H NATE A
Total st $3,860,000

BAXENREBERR2E ZZ2—ZFFR
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Notes:

() The annual increment of the directors’ fee for executive directors and non-executive
directors shall not exceed 10% of the annual fee of preceding year.

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors may receive a bonus approved by and
at the discretion of the Board from time to time. The bonus to all executive directors
and non-executive directors shall not exceed 15% of the audited consolidated profit
attributable to owners of the Company in respect of that financial year of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta had waived his
director fee for the year.

No director bonus was proposed nor paid during the year (2009: Nil).

Save as disclosed above, no director has any unexpired service contract
which is not determined by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the directors, the chief executive
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing

Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the

EERRD S
RZE-—ZFE+-_A=+-H EE - TZ
THRAERBECHBEALIRALIREM
BrEzRMD HEROREST EERL
BAEAQATRBEEFRBERATHES R D
EgpNEB2MEEEZ2ETM  SBE L
TRAMB LT ATNESETESRZNE
EAFA(EETFANERTAEARAT R
Rz EzmMT :

RELATAROGEEERO 2HFR

Company
Ordinary shares ZER

Number of % of the issued share
Director Nature of interest ordinary shares capital of the Company

HEAAREE

2= EEME ZEREE BITRABDHK
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu @ Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
EEEELO FEE LT ER
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta @ Interest of spouse 1,314,030,000 65.63%
ZHELE e 18 7 &=
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng @ Deemed interest 1,314,030,000 65.63%
BHEHELo RRER
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu © Deemed interest 1,314,030,000 65.63%
BEEELTO RAEER

BAXENREBERR2E ZZ2—ZFFR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares (Continued)
Notes:

(1) Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited, which, in turn,
indirectly owns 50% of Standard Cosmos Limited. Standard Cosmos Limited is
therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAI Yen Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the
SFO. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company attributable to Standard
Cosmos Limited are attributable to Dr TSAI.

2) Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to be
interested in the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu
pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO.

©)) Each of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu is taken to be interested in the
1,314,030,000 shares of the Company which are indirectly owned by Starsign
International Limited pursuant to Sections 317 and 318 of the SFO by virtue of Dr. SU
Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu being parties to a shareholders’ agreement dated
15 October 2009 which imposes obligations or restrictions on the parties thereto with
respect to their use, retention or disposal of their interest in shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, the chief executive nor
their associates had any interests or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 December 2010.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During 2010, the Company did not grant any new share options. There was
no share option outstanding as at 31 December 2010.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

There was no options granted to substantial shareholders, executive directors

or independent non-executive directors during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during

the year was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2010, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, the
following shareholders other than the directors of the Company had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued capital of the Company.

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0. 10 each of the Company

o IR FE ()

& D @)

RERNBEOTERR UFTESRBIHE
HEESEHIRE-

BERODIEZ2ZH

BrEX PR B R RAER B RF R EME
B AR HEEMERLF MEAIRH
BREAMBRARYTESHEITIEMNZH A<
AARESAEBRBAQXIREMEAMEA
EMEsRORESMER -

FERR
RZEZ-ZFF+ZAZ+—-B FA2ARE
RERPERPENBHRFEZCETERR S
MER RAQXBDESUIN  UTRREH
EARARERAQRACBTRATHEES
B o

REQXARGEHEBEROD Z2HFR

AR GREEOI0ET 2 EEK

Percentage
Number of of the issued
ordinary shares share capital of
beneficially held the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Notes Nature of interest BREE ERARE BT
TERREE BB Mt EEME EERYE REBDL
Efficient Market Investments Beneficial owner 838,530,000 41.88%
ERERA
Adventa Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000 11.82%
EREAA
Fortune Bright Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000 11.82%
BExfEAA
Starsign International Limited 1 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
TEFNEESR
Next Focus Holdings Limited 2 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
SEHARER
CANB Limited 3 Interest of controlled companies 1,311,690,000 65.63%
ZRHLAER
Carlyle Asia Partners IIl, L.P. 3 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
TEFNEESR
Keywise Capital Management (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 181,210,000 9.05%
JEBREEREBERAA EREAA
Martin Currie (Holdings) Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 225,296,000 11.26%

ETAMNERIERQA

323 IPNCIE:

BAXENREBERR2E ZZ2—ZFFR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

Save

Starsign International Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos Limited,
which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa
Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such, the 1,311,690,000 shares of
the Company collectively held by Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa Group
Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited and 2,340,000 shares of the Company held
directly by Standard Cosmos Limited (totalling 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company)
are attributable to Standard Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited.

Next Focus Holdings Limited directly owns 50% of Starsign International Limited. As
such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company in which Starsign International Limited
is interested are attributable to Next Focus Holdings Limited.

Carlyle Asia Partners |ll, L.P. is the sole shareholder of CA North Beach Limited, which,
in turn, is the sole shareholder of CA NB Limited. CA NB Limited directly owns 50% of
Starsign International Limited. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company in
which Starsign International Limited is interested are attributable to CA NB Limited, CA
North Beach Limited and Carlyle Asia Partners Ill, L.P..

Martin Currie (Holdings) Limited is the sole shareholder of Martin Currie Ltd, which,

in turn, is the sole shareholder of Martin Currie Inc and Martin Currie Investment
Management. Martin Currie Inc and Martin Currie Investment Management directly
hold 130,491,000 (approximately 6.52%) and 94,805,000 (approximately 4.73%) of
the shares of the Company, respectively. As such, the 225,296,000 Natural Beauty
Shares (approximately 11.25%) held by Martin Currie Inc and Martin Currie Investment
Management are attributable to Martin Currie Ltd and Martin Currie (Holdings) Limited.

as the interests disclosed above, the Company has not been notified

of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2010.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons:

(0

On 3 November 2008, (a) the Taipei Tenancy Agreement was entered
into between Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited B #A3<
YR IR 2B BR A F (formerly Natural Beauty Cosmetics Company
Limited BAELAZGRIRD B R 2 8) (‘NB Taiwan”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Dr. TSAIl as landlord
for a period of two years from 1 November 2008 to 31 October 2010
with a monthly rental of TWD2,250,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$521,304); (b) the Pa-Der Tenancy Agreement was entered into
between NB Taiwan as tenant and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng as landlord
for a period of two years from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2010
with a monthly rental of TWD70,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$16,218); (c) the Beijing Tenancy Agreement 1 was entered into
between Beijing Natural Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited dt ZX B #&
EbAEmAR AT (“Beiing NB”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as tenant and Beijing Zhong Ao Yi Natural Beauty
Cosmetics & Hair-Style Training Company Limited dt AR E B R E
EREERMIZINAERDT (“Beiing ZAY”) as landlord for a period of
two years from 1 December 2008 to 30 November 2010 with a monthly
rental of RMB230,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$259,711); and
(d) Beijing Tenancy Agreement 2 was entered into between Shanghai
Natural Beauty Sanlian Cosmetics Company Limited (“NB Sanlian”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Beijing
ZAY as landlord for a period of two years from 1 December 2008 to

30 November 2010 with a monthly rental of RMB60,000 (equivalent

to approximately HK$67,751). Beijing ZAY is a company beneficially-
owned by Dr. TSAI, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu as to
20%, 40% and 40% respectively. Details of these tenancies were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 3 November 2008.

E\%%@*%&%%E@Ej{é%’ﬂ
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

On 29 October 2010, the Taipei Tenancy Agreement was renewed for

a period of two years from 1 November 2010 to 31 October 2012 with
the same terms, and the Pa-Der Tenancy Agreement was renewed for
a period of two years from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2012 with a
monthly rental of TWD75,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,831).
The Beijing Tenancy Agreement 1 and Beijing Tenancy Agreement 2
were not renewed upon their expiry in 2010. Details of these tenancies
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 29 October
2010.

(i)  On 17 August 2010, the Company had entered into a Consultancy
Service Agreement with CA NB Limited, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to appoint CA NB Limited for the provision of certain
consultancy services, for a period of approximately 17 months which
commenced from the date of the Consultancy Service Agreement,

i.e. 17 August 2010 and will expire on 31 December 2011, both dates
inclusive, for a fee of HK$445,588 per calendar month. Details of the
Consultancy Service Agreement were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 17 August 2010.

The above transactions are regarded as continuing connected transactions
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the transactions
are disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of its business,
on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent third
parties and in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above:

()  no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year; and

(i) there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the board
of directors on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the
board of directors, as authorised by shareholders at the annual general
meeting, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

INSUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited, on behalf of Standard Cosmos
Limited, made a mandatory unconditional cash offer (“Offer”) to acquire all the
issued shares in the share capital of the Company (other than those already
owned by Standard Cosmos Limited and parties acting in concert with it),
the details of which are set out the Company’s announcement dated 23
November 2009 and the composite document in relation to the Offer jointly
issued by the Company and the offeror, namely Standard Cosmos Limited
on 23 November 2009 (“Composite Document”). Upon closing of the Offer,
462,774,932 shares of the Company, representing approximately 23.11% of
the total issued share capital of the Company, are held by the public. Prior

to the Offer, the percentage of the shares of the Company held by the public
was 23.00%. Accordingly, the Company has insufficient public float and does
not meet the requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.
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EEEWREE

INSUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT (Continued)

Pursuant to the Composite Document, to the extent that there is insufficient
public float for the Company as a result of the Offer and Standard Cosmos
Limited is unable to or does not exercise any right it may have under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands to compulsorily acquire those shares
of the Company not acquired by Standard Cosmos Limited pursuant to

the Offer, the directors of Standard Cosmos Limited and the new directors
who were appointed to the Company on 24 November 2009 will jointly and
severally undertake to the Exchange to take appropriate steps to ensure that
sufficient public float exists in the shares of the Company.

The Company is exploring various approaches to fulfil the public float
requirement.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Patrick Thomas Siewert
DIRECTOR

Hong Kong

24 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Az BUED 3RS =

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty
Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 143, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement

of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as

a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIYZHERES

Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about

the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

= AN D 7
,%/T\ S MH LIQ m
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZHFEt+-HA=+—-HLEE

Notes
Ff &E

Revenue KA 5
Cost of sales iR N
Gross profit E X
Other income H fth Uf 2= 7
Distribution and selling expenses PHEREEER
Administrative expenses THHEX
Other expenses Hih i
Profit before tax R i A0 & F
Income tax expense FrE®Ex 8
Profit for the year N F Ewm A 9
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2w

Exchange differences arising on BEELENELZE

translation

Total comprehensive income AFEEEZEWKZHEE

for the year
Profit for the year attributable to: LTATEERFEERR :

Owners of the Company AKABEE A

Non-controlling interests FERES
Total comprehensive income UTATEAZEKEEEE:

attributable to:

Owners of the Company FNUNESTE R =N

Non-controlling interests FERES
Earnings per share BRER 12

Basic BN

Diluted s

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FB T FET
485,389 538,092
(130,007) (122,913)
355,382 415,179
17,523 20,772
(146,828) (120,299)
(125,009) (109,093)
(25,220) (19,806)
75,848 186,753
(45,138) (42,830)
30,710 143,923
33,292 2,559
64,002 146,482
31,303 149,636
(593) (5,713)
30,710 143,923
64,563 152,169
(561) (5,687)
64,002 146,482

HK1.6 cents &l

HK7.5 cents 781l

N/A TiER

HK7.5 cents 781l

BAXENREBERRAE —Z2—ZFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

an\ j‘ i& ;U( ot #& %

At 31 December 2010
R=F-ZF+-A=+—~H

Notes 2010 2009
B &% —E—-=ZE5F —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR F#E T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REWHE 14 5,251 4,710
Property, plant and equipment TEHE -BENZHE 15 232,078 217,760
Prepaid lease payments BEALT#HEER 16 9,636 9,562
Goodwill SRS 17 26,640 25,833
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 18 - 3,926
Deferred taxation assets FEERIEEE 27 - 3,016
273,605 264,807

Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 19 46,725 89,076
Trade and other receivables ES5REMEWRERR 20 44,392 85,382
Prepaid lease payments BALHWEER 16 289 278
Pledged bank deposits 2 K iR 1T FE K 21 432 430
Bank balances and cash ROEERES 21 575,488 559,346
667,326 734,512
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables EZREMEMEKRR 22 126,102 93,836
Deferred income iE #E U 2= 23 10,555 10,290
Taxation payable FE {3 Fi 18 9,045 14,490
145,702 118,616
Net current assets REBEEFE 521,624 615,896
Total assets less current liabilities A EER A A& 795,229 880,703

Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Retirement benefit obligations BERBRERE 24 10,493 11,875
Deferred taxation liabilities ELEFIBBEE 27 2,102 -
12,595 11,875
782,634 868,828
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R R

At 31 December 2010

R-ZE—ZEF+=ZA=+—H

Note 2010 2009
Ff =E —E-Z5F —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FE T
Capital and reserves B A& R &1

Share capital B A 25 200,210 200,210

Reserves & 582,277 667,872
Equity attributable to owners of the X A T #EH A E{h #E &

Company 782,487 868,082
Non-controlling interests IR E R 147 746
Total equity 48R R 782,634 868,828
The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 143 were approved FOSE14MBEMNSEUBBRERNR - ——F
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2011 andare =B =t N BEEE=ES# AL BETIE > I
signed on its behalf by: HUTRERESE:

Dr. Su Chien Cheng
HESEL
Director

EF

Mr. Patrick Thomas Siewert
AL
Director

EZE

BAXENREBERRAE —Z2—ZFFR
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

B Em

n{F

3L 424

Z N mom

=

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZHFEt+-HA=+—-HLEE

At 1 January 2009

Exchange differences arising

from translation
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

(expensg) for the year
Transfers
Dividend paid to
non-controling interests

Dividends recognised as distribution

(note 13)

Recognition of share based payments
Cancellation of share options
Shares issued upon exercise of

share options

At 31 December 2009

Exchange differences arising

from translation
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

(expensg) for the year
Transfers
Dividend paid to
non-controling interests

Dividends recognised as distribution

(note 13)

At 31 December 2010

Attributable to owners of the Company

“EENF-F—-H 200064

BEEENERZSE
REEEAN

FEERANE(XH)
I\W%‘E\
L E
BRFERERRA

BREIKZ KA
(HEE13)
BRBA R
SHARE
TREARER
EXI )

R=ZEn%
+=A=+-H
BEELNERZE

FEERR
FEERANE(XH)
MW%‘E\

L E
BRFERERRA

BREIKZ KA
(H&E19)

R

[
|

(L

+

i

NG DN

Share Non-

Share  Capital Share  Statutory Translation ~ option  Retained controlling
capital  surplus premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total

AR E FER
BRA EXBEH ROHRE ZEfRE EXfE  HE REEF & B o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000
TEr T#Ex TEx TEx TExT TEx TEx TEx TEx TiEx
42554 38024 148346 63,722 109 367,141 849,960 6,447 856,407
- - - - 2,533 - - 2,533 26 2,559
- - - - - - 149636 149636  (5,713) 143,923
- - - - 2,533 - 149636 152,169  (5,687) 146,482
- - - 3,511 - - (351) - - -
- - - - - - - - (14) (14)
- - - - - - (187,076) (137,076) - (187,076)
- - - - - 541 - 541 - 54
- - - - - (25) - (25) - (25)
146 - 2,992 - - (625) - 2,513 - 2,513
200210 42,554 41,016 151,857 66,255 - 366,190 868,082 746 868,828
- - - - 33,260 - - 33,260 32 33292
- - - - - - 31303 31,303 (593) 30,710
- - - - 33,260 - 31303 64,563 (561) 64,002
- - - 3,668 - - (3659 - - -
- - - - - - - - (38) (38)
- - - - - - (150,158) (150,158) - (150,158
200210 42,554 41016 155515 99,515 - 243677 782,487 147 782,634
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GRARBR X

For the year ended 31 December 2010
 E-E-EF T A=t -HBLEFE

= — =

SHARE PREMIUM

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the owners of the Company immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed.

STATUTORY RESERVE

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the PRC companies with foreign investment are required

to transfer a certain percentage of its profit after tax, as determined under
PRC accounting regulations (the “net profit under PRC generally accepted
accounting principles (“PRC GAAP”)), to the general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund. Distribution of these reserves shall be made in
accordance with the Article of Association and approved by the board of
directors each year. Other PRC companies are required to transfer a certain
percentage of their net profit under PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan companies shall set
aside 10% of their statutory net income each year for the legal reserve, until
the reserve balance has reached the paid-in share capital amount.

CAPITAL SURPLUS

The capital surplus represents the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of the subsidiaries' net assets
acquired upon the Group Reorganisation in year 2002.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which they were created and are not distributable as
cash dividends.

% 4% E

REFEHELT L ROEERTIIRT
AAREBA HERBER2IKKRF B H
%o

5 IE fi# 1

RIS AR K AE (B EBEHRE
VREY- PRS- SNP-E ekt
a¢l@m§+ﬁmnng%mé,ﬂw¢

BARSARABTARDE palln e SR
f;—ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ DIKZE

REARBADASERARN 2R EET
VTEESESBFHE- Eﬁﬁ*@l" AR
EAREFTRABETARE DHERE
EEBBAES Ei/immﬁ,%l‘\%ﬁﬁﬁ%
EIEHRA0%HIE -

REBEEBLEFARKRA BELATESFEER
HEEFREWI0RERBLERE BEE24
BREINEABRRIESEAILL -

&N & ER

EXBBECNREREE ST -_FKH
BEABENBLAREEFEREEZEZME -

FRFERESTERRERY B U
HtRAE TAERERNEEZRF -

BAXENREBERRAE —Z2—ZFFR

69



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/_.r\ Iﬁlﬁ/ﬂbiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE-—s-—-S&+=-_F=+—BHILtEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments

Increase in fair value of investment properties

Allowance for obsolete inventories

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Share based payments

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase (decrease) in trade and
other payables
Increase (decrease) in deferred income
Decrease in defined benefit obligations

Cash generated from operations
Overseas tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010

REED

%R B AT g Al

HARTIEE:
A B W =

TBHE BMSERRBITE
HERDE BERRE

&8 (K )
BOBALHEEN
REWEDFEHE M
REFERS
BESRUWRRBERRRE

THEERENERSRE

RN EN

LEESEBAZ

RERETRE
Ts‘t 5B A (48 hn)

K H i & W AR SRR

%’%&Eﬂﬂﬁgﬁ?ﬁﬂ

12 0 Gt 2>)
i SE Yy 55 38 hn ORt 2>)
ERRMNEERD

REXBELEZRT
[ERNR:=31E 2

REFTHMEBHREFH

2010 2009
—2-%% —EBAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHxT T
75,848 186,753
(2,774) (2,359)
19,471 21,589
8,177 (594)
279 278
62) (137)
27,409 14,948
639 624
3,926 2,000
= 516
132,913 223,618
14,942 (3,165)
40,351 6,738
32,266 (9,630)
265 (84)
(1,382) (384)
219,355 217,093
(45,465) (63,002)
173,890 154,091




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2010
E-F-BFT-A=t+-HLFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Increase in pledged bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Interest received

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
1 JANUARY

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER,
represented by bank balances and cash

REEH

BETHE BRERRMBE
B3 R IR 1T 7 R
HETHE BEERE
ECE S

2 W&

REFHHMART FHE

MEEH
KA BR R
K 3F 2 IR #E 55 IR A

METHTARS FHE

RERBEESEEY
(B )8 b0 % 5

R—A—-—BzEER
REe%EY

Exgnoxd

Rt+t=ZA=+—HZ2

RERRESEEY
ERTEFERBRE)

2010 2009
—2-%% —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT F#E T
(37,168) (17,058)

2 =

6,731 10,494

2,774 2,359
(27,665) (4,205)
(150,158) (137,076)
(38) (14)
(150,196) (137,090)
(3,971) 12,796
559,346 546,205
20,113 345
575,488 559,346
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BHE_Z-ZF+_A=1t—HLEE

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001

as an exempted company with limited liability. Its shares have been
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 28 March 2002. Its ultimate parent and immediate
parent are Starsign International Limited and Standard Cosmos Limited,
respectively, and both were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the introduction to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty
and aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin treatments,
beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business Combinations

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged ltems

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2008

HK(IFRIC) = Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners

HK - Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements

— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2010
 ZE_E-ZEF+TA=T—HLEEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
Standards and Interpretations in the current year has had no material
effect on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17 Leases
has been amended in relation to the classification of leasehold land.
Before the amendments to HKAS 17, the Group was required to
classify leasehold land as operating leases and to present leasehold
land as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The amendments to HKAS 17 have removed such a
requirement. The amendments require that the classification of leasehold
land should be based on the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that
is, whether or not substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset have been transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the amendments
to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the classification of unexpired
leasehold land as at 1 January 2010 based on information that existed
at the inception of the leases. The application of amendment to HKAS
17 has had no effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010!

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets®

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures®

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues’
HK(FRIC) — Int 14 (Amendments) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement®

HK(FRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments?
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011,
as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in November
2010) adds requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

are subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

The directors anticipate that application of HKFRS 9, which will be
adopted in the Group's consolidated financial statements for financial
year ending 31 December 2013, will have no significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Groups' financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 titled Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets mainly deal with the measurement of deferred

tax for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property. Based on
the amendments, for the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of the investment properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted in certain circumstances. The directors anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 12 will have no significant
impact on deferred tax recognised for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of other
new and revised Standards and Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All'intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Prior
to 1 January 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in
excess of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
non-controlling interests had a binding obligation and were able to make
an additional investment to cover the losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition

in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided. Payments
that are related to services not yet rendered are deferred and shown as
deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Entrustment fees arising from arrangements for third party operators
to operate the same business as the Group are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in equal instalments
over the entrustment periods.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected

life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than freehold land and properties under construction
as described below) are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element

have been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent to the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)
For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Retirement benefits costs
Payments to the Mandatory Provident Funds as required under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and the Labour Standards Law (as amendment) in Taiwan and the
PRC municipal government retirement scheme, are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of the reporting period.
Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10 per cent of the greater of
the present value of the Group’s defined benefit obligations and the
fair value of plan assets at the end of the previous reporting period are
amortised over the expected average remaining working lives of the
participating employees. Past service cost is recognised immediately
to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the
amended benefits become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains
and losses and unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by
the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is
limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the
present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions
to the plan.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from the profit as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for

all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent

that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible

asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

86  Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010

R = n-I_JBZ

B IH (%)
EERBEEREBEDRERKREHE
HFEACETHIABLEETZHE(R
BIEER) REAHNERAREEEERE
BEEEHBZHRTE -

EEBHEEEREEZFERREAEH
ARG HEEERREREREEE
REERABEEEZRBER - ELEHR
RS R HEEIEES HER A
PHBENEERNEREI ZHEARRA
AEERET DB REMEERERE
BEREDPER -

Eﬁ@‘éﬁitﬂ
REDXHREELHBRIAMX -

BETHEELRE  FERIAMBE
ECRIBELEETLEE

e ZHEFEEUHERAFHEZR
i 8

e ZER -EARHEEFLEEZEMD

s HEHANHERFEEZED:

e EBEEENELEBEARRLEFNZ

e RONMEBEMENEERERER
FHERFEE RN MBERHE
&R &

e THRMGEERTLEENFEISENL
ZRx e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
n'/j—\ /jﬁ#&%ﬁj’ HE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
 E_E-EFE+_A=+—-HLEEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Research and development expenditure (Continued)
The amount initially recognised for the internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.

Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end

of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the respective credit
period, or observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount

of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred

and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Equity-settled share based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees
The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date

or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of trade receivables

is approximately HK$18,564,000 (2009: HK$59,400,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately HK$2,828,000 (2009:
HK$2,688,000).
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Estimated impairment of inventories
Management of the Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production. Management estimates the net realisable
value for such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices, sales
after year end and current market conditions. As at 31 December 2010,
an allowance for inventory of HK$27,409,000 (2009: HK$14,948,000)
was recognised.

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amount received and receivables for (i)
goods sold by the Group to outside customers which is stated net of
sales returns and allowances, (i) service income from provision of skin
treatments, beauty and SPA services and (i) entrustment fee income for
the year, and is analysed as follows:

Sales of goods EmiHE
Service income BRAEUA
Entrustment fee income FrtiE s
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, in order to allocate resources to the segment

and to assess its performance. The Chief Executive Officer of the

Company reviews internal report focuses on geographical segments
by location of customers for the purposes of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance. This is the basis upon which the

Group is organised.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments under

HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. The PRC
2. Taiwan

3. Others (Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau)

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segment.

For the year ended
31 December 2010

Revenue from external customers

Segment profit (loss)

Unallocated corporate expenses
Unallocated income

Profit before tax
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended
31 December 2009

Revenue from external customers

Segment profit (loss)

Unallocated corporate expenses
Unallocated income

Profit before tax

7 EBE R )
DEUWMAREE (E)
PRC Taiwan Others Total
R B K BE =) Hith wat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET FiET FET
BE-_ZZhF
t=RA=+t-HL&FE
RENFEEZWA 395,574 132,299 10,219 538,092
o e A (B ) 192,019 15,912 6,722) 201,209
REBEAAZH (18,515)
REBE WS 4,059
B %54 A % A 186,753

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit
(loss) represents the profit earned (loss incurred) by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs and directors’ salaries.

This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for

the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Unallocated income mainly includes interest income and exchange

differences.

A|ED I ST BREME I AMAE
EEEEMRRE - 2 BN (BR)AESD
BATRELZERN (FTEEZER) EPIL
ROBPRTBREARESHFM - LD
RERIERRAFEOEIZLEERR
ABE2EHERE RBEREFTES
BAEWARERZ5R -

BAXEYNRERLE —2—ZFFH

95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBERRME
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 ZE_E-ZEF+A=T—HLEEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. O EEE @)
Other segment information Hit 5 HER
PRC Taiwan Others Total
B K pE A Hth et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
2010 —=_—=f
Amounts included in the measure of 7 3 & F S &5 18 51 A
segment profit or loss: T A% !
Depreciation of property, TEE -BRER
plant and equipment REITE 11,806 6,095 1,570 19,471
Release of prepaid lease payments B B A L #hfH & X 279 - - 279
Loss on disposal of property, HETHE BER
plant and equipment RIBEBE 1,194 6,222 761 8,177
Allowance for obsolete inventories ~ BRE 17 & B 1% 12,268 13,679 1,462 27,409
Impairment loss (reversal of E 5 ERERTRE
allowance) on trade receivables B (B ERE) 1,402 (763) - 639
Increase in fair value of BREYZEAFEEM
investment properties - (62) - (62)
PRC Taiwan Others Total
P B K RE =0 Hb st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FH T F&ET
2009 —EEBhEF
Amounts included in the measure of 7 3 & F 5 B 18 51 A
segment profit or loss: THIFEE !
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ T8 E » BiH Kk
equipment REBITE 13,820 5,577 2,192 21,589
Release of prepaid lease payments B B B L ihfHE X 278 = = 278
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEREE  KH &
plant and equipment e (i s) 518 (598) = 4 (594)
Allowance for obsolete inventories ~ RE 17 & B 14 10,038 4,064 846 14,948
Impairment loss on trade g 5 EERR
receivables WEEE - 624 - 624
Increase in fair value of REYERNFEZGM
investment properties - (137) - (137)

96  Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
n'/j—\ /jﬁ#&%ﬁj’ HE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Entity-wide disclosures

The Group is principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of
skin care, beauty and aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision

of skin treatments, beauty and spa services and skin care consulting
and beauty training. The analysis of the Group’s revenue by type of
business for the year are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s non-current assets excluding deferred taxation assets and
available-for-sale investments by geographical location of the assets in
the places of domicile of the relevant group entities are detailed below:

The PRC o B K BE
Taiwan &
Others Hh

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer
contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2010.

7 28 E # )
BRGAHE

FEETERBQRERFEESES
é&ﬁﬁ%m&”h@%é%ﬁ‘x

R K B AR 75 LA X LIS &
BRI - AEEMBEKER D

WA BT RES ©

HEREBRBERE

PIMZER

AEBTEREEHEEERTHEE
REZIRBDEERNBAEEEREHE
M EERMAMBFENT

2010 2009

S —EThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
212,937 192,058
60,205 63,033

463 2,774
273,605 257,865

ZF’EIZQFE%EF’% WEBE R
EAEEEE_ZTAR-ZT-—ZF
‘I'—)EJ:-I-—EIJJ:EE%’EEH&)kiﬁn

10% °

BAXEYNRERLE —2-—ZFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
 ZE_E-ZEF+A=T—HLEEFE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hit =
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET THET
Interest on bank deposits RITERFE 2,774 2,359
Rental income from investment properties REREMEZHS W E 217 214
Rental income from other properties and REEMYERSZEZ

equipment e Wz 2,841 5,818
Financial refunds (note) B 7% 3B 7R (M &) 9,359 7,490
Increase in fair value of investment properties % & ¥ % A FE 1 N 62 137
Foreign exchange gain & A Ui - 544

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HERBE  BiZRERMERE
equipment - 594
Other service income H i R 7 Ut A - 2,090
Others Hh 2,270 1,526
17,523 20,772
Note: Pursuant to the local practice of the finance bureau of the provinces in which KizE: BEBEPBEAEETHEATKSERER D

certain of the PRC subsidiaries operate, the PRC subsidiaries will receive financial
refunds in the form of government grants by way of negotiation with the relevant
finance bureau with reference to the percentage of income and other taxes paid.
However, the refunds are subject to review annually. It is therefore uncertain

if these subsidiaries will continue to be eligible for such financial refunds in the
future.
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 E_E-EFE+_A=+—-HLEEFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

8. FTi5HiAx

2010 2009

—E-EF —EEAF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

The charge comprises: T HEE:
Taxation in PRC REPEZFIE

Current year KEE 27,118 27,008
Under(over)provision in prior years BEFERETEGBERE) 4,285 (2,562)
Dividend withholding tax Ji ) 78 40 B = 75

31,403 24,521

Taxation in Taiwan RegziE
Current year REE 2,288 6,741
Under(over)provision in prior years BAEFERETZGBEREE) 4,825 (83)
Dividend withholding tax i F 78 0% 989 5,076
8,102 11,764
Deferred taxation (note 27) IE 3 7 18 (M 3£ 27)

Current year NEE 5,175 6,545
Attributable to a change in tax rate i RSB T 458 -
5,633 6,545

45,138 42,830

Under the Law of the People's Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain of
the Group's PRC subsidiaries are exempted from PRC income tax for
two years starting from their first profit-making year, followed by a 50%
reduction for the next three years (the “Tax Holiday”). The Tax Holiday
continued on the implementation of the current EIT Law using the tax
rate of 25%. The Tax Holiday will expire in 2011.

BREHBEEERERE(EERERE]D
REFEREBEBRES - HEMEQ
AE-ZREN\F-A-RBZBERE
25% °

REDREBEEARRG  AEEET
TENEAREEEENFELERR
BAPEREHEME  HR=ZFEREH
50% ([HBREH]) - BITREMEB E
BTREEZS% 2HEZARBER
B-BBEBRRABR - ——FEM-

BAXEYNRERLE —2-—ZFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
 ZE_E-ZEF+-A=T—HLEEFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8.

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan is charged at 17% (2009: 25%). The
reduction of the Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan to 17% was approved
on 15 June 2010. The new rate is effective retrospectively from 1
January 2010 onwards.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Company

and its subsidiaries have no assessable profit for both years.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Fri8 3 B = )

BB EFERBEITD (BT

25%) 5t o A EBHE17% 3
RoB—BEXA+EASHAE HB
EE-E-TE—A—BEEREMR-

BB EHIZZWEFE 2 G5 ERB
HmH16.5% 5T & o

HRAXAREKNBARDEMEFES
BERFEN RUBREBRSBME
R o

AEEHREXHERS2EHRBERMAT

Profit before tax

Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits of

taxable entities in the countries concerned

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Tax effect of tax exemption and concession
granted to certain PRC subsidiaries
under the Tax Holiday
Under(over)provision in respect of prior years
Dividend withholding tax

Deferred tax liabilities arising on undistributed

profits of PRC subsidiaries

Decrease in opening deferred tax asset
resulting from a decrease in applicable
tax rate

Tax charge for the year

BR 35 A1 28 7

B SR B B R A BB SRR
BE B RN E
FAMREH R Y

BARRBE 2 BB EZE

=

AEABREABRIHBLE

RTFETHEKRERE QA
RBLIE B R R EB IR R
ZHRBTE

BEFEREBTZ(BERE)

IR A 7 OB

APEAREHELRZ2RDIK
AT EE ZIEER AR E

MYEER REERBRABE
T MR

REEBIEX N

Note: As the Group operates in several different tax jurisdictions, separate
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction have

been aggregated and presented.
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BB BNEREERAOT

2010 2009

—E-EF —ETNEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH T FH&T

75,848 186,753

21,750 32,517

9,616 12,738
(3,547) (7,608)

20,972 17,192
(20,525) (21,968)
9,110 (2,615)

989 5,151

6,315 7,423

458 =

45,138 42,830

M : ARAAEERSEFRBEEIEZRBEY

% UREEBNGREAEEEE bR
EHZBIHREAHALZS -
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 E_E-EFE+_A=+—-HLEEFE

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

Staff costs:

Directors’ emoluments (note 10)

Other staff salaries, bonuses and
allowances

Retirement benefits scheme contributions,
excluding directors:
— defined contribution plans (note 24(b))
— defined benefit plan (note 24(a))

Equity-settled share based payments

Total staff costs

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Release of prepaid lease payments

Auditor’s remuneration

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Research and development costs

Allowance for obsolete inventories

Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense

Net exchange loss (gain)

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Write off of trade receivables

REEBERNEMBRETA)THIZ IR
BRI

BEITHA:
EEME(MFE10)
Hib & THM - ALKRIRE

BRAEFGEEN  TEEES:

—E B FET 8 (B 5E24(0))
— T #848 A 5t 8 (M 5£24())
WA S EERAD AR

THE BMERRBITE

BEBERTHBEER

BB B

HERBE BMERREBE
(K z)

W E R A

REFERE

ERARAIZEFERS

BE 518 (W i) R
B2 RWRREEER
AfHERERERE

B 5 FE W AR SR 8N

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
5,355 2,948
108,377 95,574
13,597 11,980
606 599
- 516
127,935 111,617
19,471 21,589
279 278
2,821 3,677
8,177 (594)
1,330 2,471
27,409 14,948
102,598 107,965
109 (544)
639 624
3,926 2,000
409 2,675

BAXEYNRERLE —2-—ZFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BEZZ-ZFA+-A=1+—-HILEE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fifteen (2009: eleven)
directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2010

10.EEM <
ENREA+ER(ZBEAE: +— )
EEZHEMT :

BE-_Z-—-ZT5+-A=1+—HLEE

Mr. Mr. Ms. Ng Ms. Mr.
Dr. Su Gregory Patrick Shieu Feng Francis Ms. Mrs. Chen
Dr. Tsai Mr. Lee Chien Dr.Su Michael ~ Thomas Yeing Janine  Gouten- SuMei  Mr.Chen  Mr.Yang Mr. Yeh Shieh  Mr. Chen Total
YenYu  MingTa Cheng  ShHsyu Zeluck  Siewert  Christina  Junguan macher Thompson Rueylong TzeKaing  LiangFei  ShuChen Ching 2010
Gregory Francis
Michael Gouten-
BRI THE HEH &S] Zeluck i3] E39] BEL  macher BEE 313 BFI ERE  RaWY R @zt
it £E it it £E pit:3 Tt Zt 13 Tt £E £E %4 &t £ -“B-3f%
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TEn TR TER TiEn TER TER TER TER TR TER TiEn TR TER TiEn TER
(note i) (note i) (note i) (note i) (note ii) (note ii) (note ii)
(i) (e (W) (&) (&) (W) (&)
Fees Hé 1,000 700 600 600 = = = = 20 20 20 20 2% % 3% 3,866
Other emoluments Hitl e
Salaries and HER
other benefits HiEA - 299 978 897 - - - - - = = S = = o 2174
Contributions to BINER
retiement benefits i
scheme - 6 5 4 - - - - - - - - - - - 15
Discretionary and BERRER
performance related AR
incentive payments BE]
(note i) (B3 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Waiver of fees nERE - (700) - - - - - - - - - - - - - (700)
Total emoluments WesE 1,000 305 1,583 1,501 - - - - 220 220 220 20 25 25 36 5,355
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-_ZEENF+-A=+—HLLEE
Mr. Ms. Ng
Dr.Su Gregory  Mr. Patrick Shieu  Ms. Feng Mrs. Chen
Dr. Tsai Mr. Lee Chien Dr. Su Michael ~ Thomas Yeing Janine Mr. Yeh Shieh  Mr.Chen Total
Yen Yu Ming Ta Cheng  ShHsyu Zeluck Sewet  Chrisfina~~ Junguan ~ LiangFei  Shu Chen Ching 2009
Gregory
Michael
EXT  ZHE HEBY  BHR Lk WEE &% BEn  ERE  REWY ) it
st ik ft |5 ik ik at Zt ik 7t FE ZBENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tér Tz fEx TEx  TEx TR TEx fEr  TEr  TEx  TER  TEx
Fees e 1,000 700 600 600 = = = = 20 20 48 2,988
Other emoluments Eple
Salaries and other benefits FeREMET 15 38 716 677 - - - - = = = 1746
Contributions to retirement BREFGE
benefits scheme i - 6 5 g - - - - - - - 14
Discretionary and performance ~ BJE & &8 4143
related incentive payments b HE ]
(note i) (Ht i) = = = = = = = = = = = =
Waiver of fees HEhe (500) (700) (300) (300) - - - - - = - (1,800)
Total emoluments Hedg 515 34 1,021 90 - - - - 20 20 48 2,048
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
 ZE_E-ZEF+TA=T—HLEEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Francis Goutenmacher, Ms. Su Mei Thompson, Mr. Chen Ruey Long and
Mr. Yang Tze Kaing were appointed as directors of the Company on 1 February
2010.

(i) Mr. Yeh Liang Fei, Mrs. Chen Shieh Shu Chen and Mr. Chen Ching resigned as
directors of the Company on 1 February 2010.

(i) Executive directors and non-executive directors are entitled to a management
bonus aggregately not exceed 15% of the audited consolidated profit attributable
to owners of the Company in respect of that financial year of the Group, as
recommended by the Remuneration Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, Mr. Lee Ming Ta waived his
director fee for the year of approximately HK$700,000. For the year
ended 31 December 2009, Mr. Lee Ming Ta waived his director fee
for the year and Dr. Tsai Yen Yu, Dr. Su Chien Cheng and Dr. Su Sh
Hsyu waived half of the director fees for the year of approximately
HK$1,800,000.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010.

10. E B £ @)

M &E

(0

(i

(i)

Francis Goutenmacherft 4 ~ BZ B L+ + B
HEREERBTIEENR-ZE—2F_-4
—AEZEREAQATES -

EREXE RHBLLLRBBELEERS
Z-ZF_F-HBELQRAES-

REFTHNEZEESCER HITEBRIFHT
EEERUBERATBBEBAE®EG K
FEZRERARTEEABIEGES &R
15% 2 EIBBILAT o

BE-_Z—ZF5+-A=+—HL#F
E ZHELEREFURNFEZEEZHESE
#700,0008 T - BEZE-ZZZENF T+ A
S+ —HILEFE  ZHELEEBEWE
WeEZHS MEHXREBHL HEHAEB
TREFFEBLTARERBMAEE —¥
EEWE 1,800,000 TT ©

RBE-SBAFR-B-FF+=A
St-BLEE AKBEHROESS
S ESEE VeSS EES T
e TR

BAXEYNRERLE —2-—ZFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
 ZE_E-ZEF+TA=T—HLEEFE

11.EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 11.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one
(2009: one) was a director of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 10 above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2009: four) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits HehkEMBEFR
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme 3R Kk 18 Kl 51 21 { 7k

The emoluments of the four (2009: four) were within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 ~ HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 5T Z1,500,00078 7t
HK$1,500,001 ~ HK$2,000,000 1,500,0013% 7t £2,000,0007% 7t
HK$2,000,001 ~ HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T Z2,500,00078 7T
HK$3,000,001 ~ HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017% 7T 3,500,007 7T
HK$6,000,001 ~ HK$6,500,000 6,000,0015& 7T 6,500,007 7T
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners
of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$31,303,000 (2009: HK$149,636,000)
and on the weighted average number of 2,002,100,932 (2009:
2,001,188,775) ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the
year.
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EEME
AEEREREFMALTEF-—BR(=ZZ
ERNF —R)ABEQAAESE i
HBEER EXHEIORE - BTHE(=
ZEZNF MBHALTZHMESUT :

2010 2009
—2-%g —zENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
12,953 5,776

36 33

12,989 5,809

NE(CEZAF NAESFMALZ
MENFUTEER :

2010 2009
—E-%F —EENF
Headcount Headcount
A8 A

- 3

2 —

- 1

1 —

1 —

BRER
AARBEBEANELREREREFTIR
BARARHEE A AL ER #31,303,000
BT (ZZ2ZNEF : 149,636,000/ 7T)
RAEAQNBFRAMEFLHERITER

B% £02,002,100,932 (= EZ N F :
2,001,183, 77585t &
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
 E_E-EFE+_A=+—-HLEEFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12. § I8 2 Fl )
No diluted earnings per share for 2010 was presented since there HR-_Z-—ZFHEERTEBRE
are no outstanding share options for 2010. No adjustment for diluted BYEZHN _Z-—ZF2BREERA -
earnings per share for 2009 as the exercise price of the outstanding HRZZEZENFEZHRTEBRETE
share options was higher than the average market price of shares for EeNBRONERZFEImE QALK
2009. REBENF2BREBZRBAFELRAE-
13. DIVIDENDS 13. Bz F
2010 2009
—EB-2F —EThEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FBT

Dividends recognised as distribution during F RER A2 IK Z KR F :

the year:
Interim dividend, paid 2R 7 8 AR -3 BR0.0353% T
— HK$0.035 per share (ZZZNF : §KR0.035% T)
(2009: HK$0.035 per share) 70,074 70,055
Final dividend, paid ERGABERAN-ZZZNFER
— HK$0.04 per share for 2009 004 T(ZEZNF :
(2009: HK$0.0335 per share for 2008) —ZEZEN\F8MKR0.0335% T) 80,084 67,021
150,158 137,076
A final dividend of HK$0.045 per share in respect of the year ended 31 EEREMEBE-ZE—E5+=-A8
December 2010 (2009: final dividend of HK$0.040 per share in respect =+ — B It EE IR R E IR F 5 JR0.045
of the year ended 31 December 2009), amounting to HK$90,095,000 BR(ZEENE - BE-_ZEEHLE+=
(2009: HK$80,084,000) in aggregate has been proposed by the B=+4+—8 1t FE X RKRFEER0.040E
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in general Jt) » & 1£90,095,000/8 n(_g NE
meeting. 80,084,000/& 7t) * HEFRRMRBRE K

SHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
 ZE_E-ZEF+TA=T—HLEEFE

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE

At 1 January 2009

Exchange realignment

Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss

At 31 December 2009
Exchange realignment
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss

At 31 December 2010

14, RE W

HK$’000

FET
AE]
R=FBZENF-—HA—H 4,486
& 5 A 87
RIERER 2D FEE N 137
R=ZBEAF+=ZA=+—H 4,710
& & A 479
RIERER 2D FEE N 62
R=ZZE-ZFF+=-HA=+—H 5,251

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2010 and 2009 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on those dates by Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected with the
Group. Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm are members of the
Institute of Valuers, and have appropriate qualifications and recent

experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The valuation was arrived at using the direct comparison approach by
reference to market evidence of recent transaction prices for similar
properties in the similar locations and conditions.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above are situated
on freehold land outside Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z—ZF+-A=1+T—HLEE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 7B E ~ BB R

Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold  Plantand Motor  fixturesand Construction
land Buildings improvements machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
KA EE
KARELS By HERR RKEREER RE k#E  ERIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR THER TER TEn TEn TER TEn
CosT A
At 1 January 2009 R=2ENE-B-H 15,639 146,483 62,868 25,590 6,004 60,291 32,403 349,278
Exchange realignment EifZ 293 836 820 140 57 637 70 2,853
Additions ®iR - - 9,615 2,365 648 4,237 193 17,088
Disposals HE = (8,468) (2,924) (5,430) @72 (16314) = (34,108)
Transfer @ - 26,184 - 3,966 - 2,347 (32,497) -
At 31 December 2009 RZEENETZF=1-H 15,932 165,035 70,379 26,631 5,737 51,198 169 335,081
Exchange realignment EiAz 1,600 7,643 2,747 1,190 329 3,105 715 17,329
Additions £ - - 2,389 5,601 - 5532 23,646 37,168
Disposals HE = - (39,458) (5,880) (706) (15,303) - (61,347)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZE+ZB=1-H 17,632 172,678 36,067 27,542 5,360 44,532 24,530 328,231
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2009 WZEERE-F-H - 32,396 25,693 16,414 2,374 41,832 - 118,709
Exchange realignment EiRz - 261 368 70 21 511 - 1,281
Provided for the year FREE - 4,254 8,310 2,351 733 5941 - 21,589
Eiminated on disposals 1A i & B it $5 - (1,029 (2,868) 4,912) (925) (14,474) - (24,208)
At 31 December 2009 RZBERE+ZA=1-H - 35,882 31,503 13,923 2,203 33,810 - 117,321
Exchange realignment Bz = 2,122 688 559 157 2,274 - 5,800
Provided for the year ERBE - 4,518 6,794 2,095 725 5,339 - 19,471
Bliminated on disposals WAt &R 84 - - (31,318 (3,719) (254) (11,148) = (46,439
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-25+-A=t-H - 42,622 7,667 12,858 2,831 30275 - 96,153
CARRYING VALUES k[
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZE+ZH=1-H 17,632 130,156 28,390 14,684 2,529 14,257 24,530 232,078
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEENET-A=1-H 15,932 129,153 38,876 12,708 3,634 17,388 169 217,760
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e BERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2010
 ZE_E-ZEF+TA=T—HLEEFE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.7BE - BESRERHE@

16.

(Continued)
The carrying values of freehold land and buildings shown above are bk R XL R IEFIREEN R
situated on: THRE :
2010 2009
—E-=ZF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHE T THET
Land in the PRC held under medium-term A AR B A BE 4R 35 0 HA £ #th (5 FA 4
land use rights BEezLi 116,873 116,533
Freehold land in Taiwan REEBEEBZKAERELH 30,815 28,552
147,688 145,085

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Buildings 40 - 55 years

Leasehold improvements The shorter of the unexpired period
of the lease and estimated
useful life of 3 to 10 years

Plant and machinery 5 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 — 15 years

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments
comprise leasehold land rights in the PRC

under medium-term land use rights BzE L tFERAE
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERAESAOT :

Non-current asset FRBEE

Current asset RBEE

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010

AEBZEATHEEREER
R A ek DA B i R AR

BREZIREN LAFBE - BSRRE
HERAEREEUATFRIFE .

KAKELIH i

BgF 40—55%F

HEMR AEREBEFHE
et AT E A5
3E10F 2B EE

5 R 88 5—10%

RE 3—5%

RE -H£ERRE 2— 1655

16. B A+ EE R

2010 2009
—g-%fF = 2k
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FB1
9,925 9,840

9,636 9,662

289 278

9,925 9,840
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 E_E-EFE+_A=+—-HLEEFE

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
HK$’000
TET
COST 2N
At 1 January 2009 R-—ZEZENRF—HA—H 28,958
Exchange realignment [E 5 5 % 67
At 31 December 2009 RZBEAF+ZA=+—H 29,025
Exchange realignment fE R 807
At 31 December 2010 R-E—ZFFE+=-BA=+—H 29,832
IMPAIRMENT RAE
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 and R-ZZEZNE-—B—RB -ZZFEFh&E+=A
31 December 2010 =+—BAg=—ZE—ZFEF+=-_B=+—8 3,192
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2010 R-B-=BF+=-_H=+—H 26,640
At 31 December 2009 R-_EBEZFEAE+_-_RA=+—H 25,833

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
an individual cash generating unit, namely, sale of cosmetic products in
the PRC (CGU). The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December
2010 and 2009 is allocated to this CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on
a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period using a declining growth rate and cash flows over five
years are extrapolated assuming no growth rate, and discount rate

of 5% (2009: 5%). This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. One key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of this unit to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this unit.

BREERAMNS BHECIBRETE

AEBNREELEM(AIHEEERRE
m  REZEB-_ZEER_ZFBFZNF+ZA
St-RAZEERAENIRELRSE
EEEBN-

ReEEBUNTRESECRIEFER
BEEBE TEAFZEBEEEBOME
WEFREEENRERETER  BFX
BEXRTER MAFHE2RERETD
REBRLBIZER RN (ZZEBNE  5%)
BRI R E - WIBRETDREMBETE
BRIFER  ERIEBZERETETEY
RHRBRER -FHEAEFELREZS —
BXIERREGHRESAAN RHE(EE
FEHEEEEREMNR)ERE  BEMGEHE
BEEABU2BAERBREEESH D
SEREHEE EEEMRE  EHZ
ERBZAMEEATEEHIFIESEHR
ZHReELBEUCEAABEREZES
EXBNzAKRESEE-

BAXEYNRERLE —2-—ZFFH
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19.

20.

Unlisted equity securities, at cost

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2010
 E_E-EFE+_A=+—-HLEEFE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

FEMRARES  EHEA

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by private entities incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and Cayman Islands which are engaged in investment holding
and online health consultancy service, respectively. They are measured
at cost less accumulated impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fair values
cannot be measured reliably. The investments are fully impaired in 2010

in view of operating losses.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Finished goods

Trade receivables

Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Prepayments
Other receivables

Total trade and other receivables
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R ¥
B

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B 2 BWRR
o RARE A

BN RIE
H 1t FE W AR K

B2 REMERRZRA

Zf

18. 7] £ H

ERE

THEHERERE

—2-2F

2010

HK$°000
TR

2009

—EEhF

HK$'000
TERT

3,926

FHF ETREERZABEFREER

MEFEEMAYL 2

RIRBREER

ERLBREERRB2MABRRET
FETRAZBZNRE -BHRZEFFL
TRENGEFEEATEEEELR K

19. 78

200 EBESKRHE

AR EERBTHASZTEQATFE W
HZEF LETRENSREHEEER
BEANBRETRENE GEREE
B ZEREN-Z—ZSFBHEE-
2010 2009
—E-2F —EZNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT T
26,707 40,964
20,018 48,112
46,725 89,076
b P& UK BR 3X
2010 2009
—B-BF —ETHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FE T
21,392 62,088
(2,828) (2,688)
18,564 59,400
9,551 11,263
16,277 14,719
44,392 85,382
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from one to six months to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date
at the end of the reporting period.

Within 180 days 180 &

181 days to 365 days 181H £365H
1 to 2 years 1224

Over 2 years 2F B E

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits to customers are reviewed regularly.
The majority of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have no history of defaulting on repayment.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$192,000 (31 December 2009:
HK$8,525,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is within 180 days (2009: within 180 days).

0. E 5 & H b FE W BR )

AEERTHEZEF-—Z2XBRAZE
Ef - RBEHEEEBHRRRER
ZEZRWRREZERZAH 2D 2RI
DHAMT o

2010 2009
= —
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
18,372 50,875
192 4,670

- 3,580

- 275

18,564 59,400

BEXEAHEFAN  ARERARBE
EHE FHEBEEEF2FEERERE
BEFEERFER FFEEBER - X3
DARBHRARREZ E S W RR L E
e REBRCE -

AEECESREWERRESRBENRS
HEEE R BB mAE = HETR
WEBERECERERREAAESH
192,000 T (ZZEZERF+ A =+—
H : 8,525,000/ ) c AEBI M ZE
EREFEEEMEFRR ZEERERZ
TRk A180R (= Z N F 1 180H) °

BAXEYNRERLE —2-—ZFFH
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 ZE_E—ZEF+A=T—HLEFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

181 days to 365 days 181H £365H
1 to 2 years 1224
Over 2 years 2F B E

Since 2002, certain subsidiaries have entered into Assets Entrustment
Agreements with various operators. Pursuant to these agreements,
these subsidiaries and the operators agreed for the latter to manage and
operate the same business (the “Entrusted Assets”) as the subsidiaries,
including the provision of spa and beauty services, the sales of beauty
and skin care products, the provision of beauty training courses and

the provision of assistance by the subsidiaries to the operators in the
development of the franchise network. The appointments are effective
for period ranging from one to five years and the operators are required
to pay the subsidiaries an entrustment fee which is determined with
reference to the net asset value of the respective subsidiaries at the date
of the agreement. The operators are entitled to retain any profits and
are obligated to bear any losses, excluding the depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, arising from the operation of the Entrusted Assets
under the operators’ management and operation. The subsidiaries
retain the title to the property, plant and equipment. As security for the
operators’ obligations under the agreement, the operators are required
to place a security with the subsidiaries. The Group is not permitted to
repledge the collateral in the absence of default by the operators. By 31
December 2010, the entrustment agreements had expired, and so there
was no security held by the subsidiaries.

The impact of the assets entrustment agreements on the consolidated
financial statements are summarised as follows:

0. E 5 & H b FE W BR )

CABERBREZEZBRERZ
AR iR

2010 2009
—g-2% —EEThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T Tl
192 4,670

- 3,580

- 275

192 8,525

H-ZZ_FE FTHEBARESZX
REETVEREZARED S - REZ
Lz ZEMBLARKEERZR
EEERKEMRER(XTEEREED
EAEMBARE  BERMKERERR
BoHEXAREEER REXTEI
mERMBE AR EEERBEMEL
ERE REEXBMB =215 BFA
AEARAXN—E22TZHWBAAR
HEAMEEFEE 2ZAELEER -
REERRREEANEERKEHNEE
REZTEEEEENEMER > XA
AREANEERCEHEASREEE
EENEAEE EFTEEITDE  HS
RREFE-WEBARARELDE M5
RREzHERE REZGE CEER
AfEARAR -—EREL  UREH
BOHRETEE ELEEALREY
MERT AKETEEBKFERE
AR -R-ZF-ZFF+-A=t—A5"
REREHBECER  WHE QR ILE
FEERR-

EEZAREHBHEREUBRRZE
S/AMIMT -

FREELE WE

Entrustment fee income for the year
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2010 2009
—g-%F —EThEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

50 198
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the following outstanding balances
arising from the assets entrustment agreements with operators are
included as other receivables in the consolidated statement of financial
position:

20.

B REMERER@®
EEBAERBRECESERERZ

AR 2 (40)

RBESHEEER UTERKEENE
EEXAREBBELE 2R RFHE R
R A B RSR O R 2% B 4 HL A R K

Entrustment fee receivables ERWEFALKEER
Consideration receivable for sales of assets EEEEHEEERKKRE
(B35 KR BRI

(other than plant and machinery) to the
operators

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

FHEER
e W R AR 2 R E B 18
TR WE KRRz MHE S

Balance at the beginning of the year
Impairment loss recognised on receivables
Amounts written off as uncollectible

Amounts recovered during the year FREUWE €58
Balance at the end of the year FREER

2010 2009
—z-%%5 —EThE
HK$’000 HK$’000

THET THET

- 11

760 682

760 693

RERESZD

2010 2009

—E-2F —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FET

2,688 2,963

639 1,118
(499) (899)
- (494)

2,828 2,688

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$2,828,000 (2009:
HK$2,688,000), which have been identified with financial difficulties. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RERBEREEEBRERRBEST K
R &~ & 5 FE W BR 54 8R & $£2,828,000
BIT(ZEENF : 2,688,000/ 7T) » NE
ENERZEEHREEEMEKER-

BAXEYNRERLE —2—ZFFH
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BE-_Z—ZZF+-A=+—HLEE

21.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK

BALANCES AND CASH
Pledged bank deposits

The pledged bank deposits are interest-free deposits which represent

deposits pledged to the bank as security for the obligation under the
rental agreement. The pledge will be released upon the termination of

the relevant rental agreement.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The
amounts bear interest at market rates which range from 0.001% to 1.2%

per annum (2009: 0.08% to 1.08% per annum).

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s bank deposits of US$12,496,000

(2009: US$32,592,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$97,260,000

(2009: HK$252,750,000)) was denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the relevant group entity.

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Deposits from customers
Other tax payables
Other payables

Total trade and other payables
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25 BNERXK
EFRE

H At P& A B2 18
H A AR

B REMEMNBRRE

1 58

1. MBI ETRITERF

E#EE
B A IRITE R

EEARTERRBEERTRITELSE
EMBETEEZERNRERR - K
AREREEEEHEL ERHERR-

ROTEERRS
RITEEFERESEBEAEEMEREER
REAB=EARURAZEHRTER
.:xﬁ?k%ﬁ*ﬂ?i%u?ooof 12B 2 M5
FlEG 2 TZNF : FFER0OBEE
1.03F)°

R-ZE—ZF+-A=+—0 F&£H

RITERBE12,496,000E T(ZEZNF :
32,592,0003% jt ) (18 & 7 £997,260,0007

TT(ZZEZNF 252,750,000/ 7)) * T3
REBEEERIIAEEE LI 2GS
§ °

2. B REMENAIRR

2010 2009
—2-%g —2ENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
13,032 12,079
20,209 22,894
8,086 8,917
84,775 49,946
126,102 93,836
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BE=

22.

23.

—EBFF+T-A=T-HLEFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

Within 180 days
181 days to 365 days

180B
181H £365H

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

DEFERRED INCOME

ANBERE

Prepaid treatment fees

Deferred income represents the receipts via credit cards, cheques and
cash from sales of beauty services to customers and recognised in the
profit or loss upon provision of the services to the customers.

2BE5K

BE A 5K

3. I fE Wz

H fth BB Y BR R
RESHHLEE D2 E 2B RRIER
HAMIIZEBDFLT :

2010 2009

—g-%F —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
13,032 10,587

= 1,492
13,032 12,079

BEERZFHIEEHRROX -AEH

ERYUBABERREK
ARREFERRAEN -

2010
—z-%f
HK$’000
FHT

10,555

LARE IR PR A

2009
—2BhF
HK$'000
T

10,290

EEWRENEFHEEXTRBMESR
EAF XERRESWMZE
ERFRHEBRBSERRRER

RIE o AR E
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E=F-FFt=A=t-BLEE

24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS
(@) Defined benefit plan

The Group’s Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to all employees in accordance with the
Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The Group has an
obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned. The Group currently contributes at 2%
of the total salaries as determined and approved by the relevant
government authorities. Under the scheme, the employees are
entitled to retirement benefits equal to two months’ salary for each
year of service for the first 15 years and one month’s salary for
each year of service following the 15 years, but not more than 45
months’ salary in aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No other
post-retirement benefits are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme

is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present
value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation as at 31 December
2010 and 2009 was carried out by a qualified staff member

of PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who is a member of The
Actuarial Institute of the Republic of China. The actuarial valuation
indicates that the Group’s obligations under this defined benefit
retirement scheme are 2% (2009: 2%) covered by the deposits
paid with the Bank of Taiwan, Ltd.

() The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the
actuarial valuations were as follows:

Discount rate AL I8 &
Expected return on plan assets B EEE B ERE
Expected rate of salary increases FEH S £ B INEE

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets
was HK$1,657,000 (2009: HK$130,000).
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24. R AK 2 7 5t &l
(a) EEERHE

AEBREWBARRIEAELE
HEZ (KBTS M RERS
2 m2BEEEREEERN XK@
BERREBNEEZHES TR
EEESCEN AEERZEHE
BREEREER A EHEBAEE2%E
R RIBEFTE BEEME15E R
BEEBEZAHERWER M
ZERAERN B#ZERBEER
ZEEFEAAE—BAFH EE
60BE BF & £ A HB45E A& o &
SEYEREEELMBREBEF -

AEEBEKRS T ERIE BT
BoODRESERRBEHERMIE
HRKEESZARENENSE
TE EEREAERRUETRE
mEMEEE 22 FEBSHEN
W BB ERAERBEMRKA
I ENANRIEFE R=F
—ZEER-FBEAFTZA=T—
B EEfMERERE TS
ZEEREIET HATERE
REZ2G 28 BEMEER
AEBREEEFEIKGEIFTE
BE2H(ZBETNE 1 2%) HEAT
FERERTERATD ZIFSER -

() FERAZTEREGERRAOT :

2010 2009
—s-%F —TEAE
1.75% 2.25%
1.75% 2.25%
2.50% 2.50%

BEAEETTEEETES
1,657,000 T (=& & AL & : 130,000
BIT) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z—ZF+-A=+T—HLEE

24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)

(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the defined
benefit plans are as follows:

Current service cost 3R B AR A% AR AR
Interest on obligations F B RR A
Expected return on plan assets FEEEREHERE

Net actuarial loss BEEEFE

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in
respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows:

Present value of funded defined benefit 2 & & & %8 1& 7l
obligations ERRE

Fair value of plan assets FTEEEAFE
Net unrecognised actuarial losses RERBEFBFE

ERBENEREEZ
BEFE

Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligations

24, R K1E R 5T 2 )
(a) EEE%E A EE)
REREREEEAN MRS

(i

ZEEMT
2010 2009
—2-%g —BENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
281 275

312 332

@) ®

16 =

606 599

(iii)

AEEDERBANTEREE
BER SR T ARESHBRR

®x MIWT
2010 2009
—e-%x —BENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHR 81
13,631 13,5650
(1,657) (130)
(1,481) (1,545)
10,493 11,875

BAXEYNRERLE —2-—ZFFH

117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBERRME
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)

(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

24, R K1E R 5T 2 )
(a) EEE%E A EE)

118

(ivy Movements in the present value of the defined benefit vy AEEECEHEEANEKRE

obligations in the current year were as follows: BEMT :

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

S FTHERT

At 1 January Kn—HA—H 13,550 12,162

Current service cost IR I BR 75 AR A< 281 275

Interest on obligations BHEFE 312 332

Benefits paid 2 EF (1,603) (1,643)

Actuarial (gains) losses BEWREE (180) 2,167

Exchange differences on foreign plans 8 71 &1 &I I % = 28 1,271 257

At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 13,631 13,550
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Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current

REFEZHBEELTES

year were as follows: BT :
2010 2009
—E-EF —EEAF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
At 1 January ®—HA—H 130 560
Contributions from the employer & E MK 3,001 1,196
Expected return on plan assets FFEEERHERE 3 8
Benefits paid [EEREEE (1,603) (1,643)
Actuarial gains BEWE 7 10
Exchange differences on foreign plans &5t Sl E X% = &8 119 (1)
At 31 December WN+=—_B=+—H 1,657 130
Actual return on plan assets TEEECERER 10 18

The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based

on historical return trends and analysts’ predictions of the
market for the asset in the next twelve months.

ESMFRAPEHRTMIIE
BREOBEBERSNEHE
ERARE+ @R zHEER
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22T —

ZE+T-A=+—HALEE

24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)

(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

W)

(Continued)

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of the fair
value at the end of the reporting period for each category are as
follows:

Deposits with financial institutions FFUBEEEZ RS
Short term bills EHERE

Stocks % 12

Bonds &%

Others Hi

(b) Defined contribution plans

U

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the HK MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF
Scheme”). The HK MPF scheme and the TW MPF Scheme
are defined contribution retirement scheme administered

by independent trustees. Under the HK MPF scheme and
TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% and 6%,
respectively, of the employees’ relevant income, subject to

a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000 for the HK
MPF Scheme while there is no cap to monthly income under
the TW MPF Scheme. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

24, R IRE R 5T 2@
(a) EZEEFFE(E)
v (&)
HEEEYEEERUREERR
HEMPAER 2 ATET A M

T
2010 2009
—s-%f —EEAE
% %

CRL Bt
29.48 43.55

11.78 3.58

7.04 10.50

10.95 10.80

40.75 31.57

100.0 100.0

(b) EEMHKEE
) AEERBEEBEHMELAES
RGO BREBEBIENE
BHEERNEAZEER LA
MABEFE(HEBEBESS
2 ZREBEEELEBELEL
(BRI B ABE S
E((agmBE2stall) - &
BESFERAERE RS
EHBIETAEE 2 ERM
RENRGTE - RIEFBREES
rEREERESHE  EX
FEEXEBZERE D BEL
HEREEBBBRAS%KR6%Z
"R BEBEESTEZEA
BREAW A LR %20,000/ 7T -
megmBEestaALES A
WA EBR o 5 8 {4 5 B0 R 13 57
BEFTAE -
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)

(b) Defined contribution plans (Continued)

24, R K1E R 5T 2 )
(b) EFEMHFETEIE)

(i)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the PRC government. As stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC, these relevant subsidiaries participate
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised

by the relevant authorities for its PRC employees. The
employees are entitled to retirement pension calculated

with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and their
length of service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement plans which are
calculated based on certain prescribed rates and the salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances of its PRC employees. The
Group has no other material obligations for the payment of
pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$14,218,000 (2009:
HK$12,593,000) represents contributions paid on payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

(i

FEETEREQAREESD
BRFEE2AREERKE
Mt RE - BEEMBAFCE
REFEZERRAE REGH
BEZNEEREBRERRS
ZEBHRRERNKTE -EBER
BREABEBNER  BRE
REBRE ZERFHE UK KRB
FHURBERAKE -HEBFE
EOZERAEIHMERS -
MASEAZE THEELRRK
HYBEEZ#HE  fEAESE
FIRRE ARG B MR - R E
iz FEHERI AKX E
HZENHHRECHMERAE
MERERERE -

AR R ZHERAE14,218,0008 5T (=
FTEHF 1 12,593,000/8 7T) * DAEEF
RO HEEMNZETE 2 ERK -

25.SHARE CAPITAL 25. R 7<
Number of shares Share Capital
3 &E (&N
2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-Z2F | ZEZThEF | ZE-ZF | ZEENF
’000 ’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T R B
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each & REE0. 138 T 2 LB R
Authorised: EE
At beginning of year and REDRFL
end of year 4,000,000 4,000,000 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR:
At beginning of year RED 2,002,100 2,000,640 200,210 200,064
Shares issued upon exercise of  {T{E IR FE R 2T IR G
share options - 1,460 - 146
At end of year RER 2,002,100 2,002,100 200,210 200,210
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25 SHARE CAP'TAL (Continued)

26.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, share options had been
exercised by option holders to subscribe for a total of 1,461,502
shares of HK$0.1 each by payment of cash bonus of approximately
HK$2,513,000, of which approximately HK$146,000 were credited
to share capital and the balance of approximately HK$2,992,000 and
HK$625,000 were credited and debited to share premium and share
option reserve respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive or non-executive

Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares

at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options granted.
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant.
The Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on
11 March 2002.

Options granted may be exercised during such period as would be

determined by the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and

notified to each grantee upon grant of the option, but in any event not

later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. The subscription

price for shares under the Scheme may be determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less than the higher
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s

daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option, which must be

a business day; and (b) the average of the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant
option.

25.

26. &

N )

Ejzi_v ENFE+—A=1T—HLEFE
RBRECER H”*Ehﬁ)\u?zﬁfﬁéﬁl
%IJ #)2,513,00058 7T 2 F RATE » LLREB
& $1,461,5028% & % E 0. 1,%732&13
B #146,0008 T B AR AN > &
17 #92,992,0007% Jt } 625,000 7T 2 Bl A
B ERRREREPT AR

=77\ HX* '__L-I_ iJ
BERRNR=-ZZE-F=A+—HAEB
ZEEABRER AQAFACEMN—ERR
EAE(RRESTE]D  EERESRAE
EREERERE REIARETE K
AR ARARBRENE AR Z2BI{E
EERPITESHAHFITES)IRER
R BEHRERBREUREIETR
B o Fﬁﬁzﬁwﬂﬁ%%;ﬁﬁ"iﬁzﬂjﬁﬁﬂ
i*‘r28El RER - RRESTERR =
—F=ZA+-— EIfL+$HEFﬁ ii*ix‘ﬁﬂ

AREARATREAADESES(ES
ENRERBREFREL NS ZARA
MEMBETERRE  EEEAERT &
ARBRHRABRERBET T FRTE-
RIBARETE ESTHRETRSD
ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ’]%ﬁé CHEEEMERT
RBEFREIRUTERZESE (@

?EE PREAM(KAREER)  ROE
BRXPrERMEERREHE: RO)NE

?%?itljﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁffgﬁﬁﬂﬁuﬁﬂ £%H >
IR R BER P B R B E PR F

B o
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Company may grant share options to specified participants over
and above the scheme mandate limit or the refreshed scheme mandate
limit referred to above subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meetings and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must not
exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

At 31 December 2009 and 2010, no shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme
(representing 0% (2009: 0%) of the shares of the Company in issue

at that date). The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital in issue or with an aggregate value
in excess of HK$5 million based on the closing price of the shares at
the date of each grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

There was no option granted to substantial shareholders, executive

directors or independent non-executive directors during both 2009 and
2010.
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AEMABARERHEEREFTEZER
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by employees during the years ended 31 December 2009

and 2010:

Option type

AREER
2007 Type ll

2007 Type
—EELE

et ]

2008 Type |
- gi)\ 3

2008 Type ll
—EENE

m.— = *E

2008 Type |l
—FENE

=8

Date of grant

R AH
27 July 2007

SERLE
tA=+tH

27 July 2007

—ZTtE
+tH=t++H

16 July 2008

S LIS
£AtAR

16 July 2008

—zENE
£ATAR

16 July 2008

S LS
£AtAR

Exercisable at the end of the year

FRETTE

Weighted average exercise price

T TREE

Vesting
period

BES
2 years

ES

3 years

=F

1 year

-

2 years

ES

3 years

=F

Exercisable
period

M

1 July 2009 to
26 July 2017
—EENE
tﬂ AZ
—+F
tﬂ + XA

1 July 2010 to
26 July 2017

—2-%%
tH—-HZ
—E-t%
tA=t~E

1 July 2009 to
15 July 2018

“EEINF
tA-B%
—E-N\E
tAt+aA

1 July 2010 to
15 July 2018
—3-%%
tH—-HZ
—E-N\§
tB+HA

1 July 2011 to
15 July 2018

Exercise
price

T\
176

1.76

1.69

1.69

1.69

26 s HX *E -I\:I-I_ i‘J
TRIESE EEEM@Eigg

NER=

F-FFET-A=t-ALFEREZ

AARRBREZE :
Outstanding
Exercised Cancelled at
Outstanding during during 31.12.2009
at yearended  yearended and
1.1.2009 31.12.2009 31122009  31.12.2010
RZZBZNE
t=8
REZE REZ =+-8AR
“ZENE ZBTNFE CZE-ZF
RZBZhE +=H T+=A +=H
—R—H =T— =1t—H ETT —H
WRTE LEEAE  LEERE i KT B
383,659 (383,659 - =
265,772 (255,772 - -
438,551 (411,035) (27,516) -
263,131 (246,622) (16,509) —
175,420 (164,414) (11,0006) -
1,616,633 (1,461,502) (65,031) -
Nil % Nil #&
1.72 1.76 1.69 Nil #&
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

As an additional employee incentive, the Company will pay the relevant
option holder a cash bonus in the amount of the total exercise price
payable for the exercise of the options. The option holders are required
to use any such cash bonus towards payment of the exercise price of
the relevant options. A cash bonus of approximately HK$2,513,000
was paid and used directly for the exercise of the options for 1,461,502
shares issued during the year ended 31 December 2009.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recognised the
total expense of approximately HK$541,000 and reversal of expenses
of HK$25,000 in relation to share options granted and share options
cancelled by the Company respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, no options were granted,
exercised or outstanding under the Scheme.

27.DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised

and movements thereon during the current or prior years:

27.

6. WA ST Elum

ERZEEIIMEE R J?:?ﬂ'zs'&aﬂ%%mﬁﬁa
RABREFEAZNSSERERRITER
BREERNETHEE2RSRELAL - BRE
BEAZERARMAZSRESRAZIM
HEARREZITFEE MABE-ZZ
hWE+ZBA=+—HLEEE BEXHY
2,513,000/ Jt 2 W& fL 4L I B # AE1T
532 171,461,5020% IR 10 Z SR B HE ©

BE-_ZTZNAF+-A=1t—HLEEE"
FEBEHRALAARE 2 RBRERTH

ZRARRETERR X #54541,0008 T &
% B Y 25,0008 JT ©

REBEZE-ZE-ZEF+-A=F+—-HILLHF
E*’I@&ﬁﬁ?&%’\ﬁﬂﬁéffﬁf DR EIRE
TS ARITE

i SE T 1E
UTHENRBEFERR 2 EBRE
BAREIREBEUARELED:

Allowance Other  Undistributed
forbadand  Revaluation Defined Unrealised short-term earnings
doubtful of benefit profits on temporary of PRC
debts properties liability inventories differences entities Total
it AE5 AR PEERZ
REBRE Eftx BREE FEEF EREE  ROREN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER THER THER THER
At 1 January 2009 R-ZEZHhE-A-H (641) (847) (3,460) (5,396) % 1,092 (9,156)
Exchange realignment ERHE (19) @ (72) (286) (28) - (405)
(Credlt) charge toprofitorloss ~ RBHEKR (Gt A) B (68) 34 (289) (397) (162 7,423 6,545
At 31 December 2009 RZBEhE
+TZA=t-H (724) (817) (3817) (6,079 (94) 8,515 (3,016)
Exchange realignment ELAE (62) 43) (140) (278) @ - (515)
(Credit) charge toprofitorloss ~ WER K (Gt A) 1B 210 10 (401) (791) (168) 6,315 5,175
Effect of change in tax rate HEg8 ¥E 59 67 305 6 21 - 458
At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZF
+ZH=1-H (507) (783) (4,063 (7,142 (243) 14,830 2,102
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27.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

28.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$253,551,000 (2009: HK$175,329,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The Hong Kong tax losses of approximately HK$46,091,000 (2009:
HK$33,788,000) do not expire under the current tax legislation in Hong
Kong and all other tax losses will expire from 2011 to 2015 (2009: 2010
to 2014).

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries arising since 1 January

2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated to be
distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to such profits
amounting to approximately HK$296,610,000 (2009: HK$150,391,000).

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made rental payments for office premises
under operating leases as follows:

Minimum lease payments BRIEHESAR
Contingent rental payments ERAY R NE

27.

28.

Eﬁﬁﬁ@
RBEPEEER  AEEEARSHAB

IEJE'ﬂE,%’J%S 551,000 T(ZZEZNF :
175,329,000 7t ) A FB 1E 3K 88 R 2R & Al o
HAREERE B &5&FRIE  H &
REBVEFERIAEEHRBEE -
RIBEFBRITBA BEFEEBEY
46,091,000 st (= E & J1. 4 © 33,788,000
&) AR EH ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁlﬁ&?ﬁﬂ%ﬁé
—E2——F= —EFEH(=ZEEAN
FI2E— ifﬁ;’é T —FERHE) -

EBEAEEZHEAREHBARBE=Z
ENFE-A—BURFEERDREF
ZEEFBECELEHEBE FERAE
ERAHZSEBAMETRIUER S KT A
fED K © $$IEEJL,\M$,MIJEE§Z
7 B = ZA1E tH 49296,610,0008 T (=&

HEE 1 150,391,000 7T ) 2 IE Uﬂlﬁﬁﬂﬁ °
KRE L
AEEEAEABEA
FR-AEERBEELHORERREQ
EMEMAFUTHES
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FET
31,981 27,600
7,442 7,517
39,423 35,117
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28. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 28.

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFERF(BREEME)
Over five years BBRFE

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its leased properties. Leases are negotiated and rentals are
fixed for an average term of five years.

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for contingent rental payable,
if any, when the amounts are determined by applying a percentage of
turnover of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in
advance the amount of such contingent rentals.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010

KLZEH @
AEEEAABAGE
REEMMELER - AEERER TR
WEREANBRTHERABNZB%
BEESRAEMT :

2010 2009
—E-ZHF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&E T THET
20,716 21,629
18,288 16,956

946 7,748

39,950 46,333

RERORENAEEFRE THEWE
X zHEE HERKEFmMHEESRTY
AEHEEHTE -

FHBEEREEEEESNEESEE I
TEENAEEEREXER I LERE
THBEN cIRAEEAE@EA)  RR
ARTAUEELEEZSIAREEEHE -
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28. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor

Property

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$2,863,000 (2009:
HK$5,623,000), net of outgoings of HK$195,000 (2009: HK$409,000).
All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next one to five
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

—F R
FCEERF(BEEEMST)

Within one year
In the second year to fifth year inclusive

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

RBBTBE - BER

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition

of property, plant and equipment RBZETHE
contracted for but not provided in the VN %: R R TS
BE2ERRAX

consolidated financial statements

8. &KEH N @m)

AEBEESHBEA

FHE

IR % $5195,0008 T(ZEE N F :
409,000/ 7T)1% - RERNBREL Z Y %78

W& 52,863,000 T(=Z2Z

hE:

5,623,000/ 7T) - TIEHEZTEBEELD
AEBEF HEFHPNTF-—EZHF-

RESHMEEER  AEEREF ST

Wz ARREBASAROT :

2010 2009
=y W ¥ =t 1 P
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH FHT
618 529
516 —
1,134 529

9. B AR IE
2010 2009
= W ¥ —EEhE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
10,160 1,090
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30. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY

DISCLOSURES

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with related
parties, which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The
significant transactions with these parties during the year are as follows:

(A) TRANSACTIONS
()  CONNECTED PARTIES

Name of company

NCIE=E:

Companies controlled by
the substantial shareholders:

TERRIEF LG
BAREMEL

MEEA BT EBREXHEE
2Egg

TERBEREEHE

B A% Rt

TREERROBRAE
BETERRMBE

EEARERTERLE

LtRPRBEARZCHURABRLE

CA NB Limited
Director of the Company:
AREEE:

Su Chien Cheng
HEH

Tsai Yen Yu
BHEE
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Nature of transactions

REME

Rental income
HE s
Rental income
iR
Rental income
e W=
Rental income
HE s
Rental income
iR A
Rental income
iR
Purchase of lingerie

REATK

Balance due to at 31 December

— trade payables

RT=-—R=+—-HEH=
HHR-EIRNRR

Rental expenses

HEZH

Consultancy fee expenses

BEEAX N

Rental expenses
Hex
Rental expenses

HEXH

.HRERBHEEALRS

FR - AEEERBEEATETER
R HEHPHOATRBEBRFAHFS L
MRABREFEEAL - FREZEA

TETZERRGWT :

A x5
()

BEA L

2010
—s-%f
HK$°000
FHBT

10
14
10
11
15

10

3,699

2,228

211

6,779

2009
—2ThEF
HK$'000
FHT

14
14
14
14
14
14

23

12

3,943

197

6,329
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30. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(A) TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
()  COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT

PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

SRR
RARAEF

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regarded
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

(B) OTHER ARRANGEMENTS

U

Under a licensing agreement, a director of the Company
granted to Natural Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited (“NB
Taiwan”), a subsidiary incorporated and operated in Taiwan,
a license to use a skin test software from 1 January 1997 to
31 December 2011 for a nominal consideration of NT$1.

On 5 October 2001, NB Taiwan entered into two separate
licensing agreements with two directors of the Company.
Under the agreements, the directors agreed to license

a number of trademarks to NB Taiwan, on an exclusive
basis, for a nominal consideration of NT$1. The licensing
agreements will be effective till the expiry of the registration of
the respective trademarks.

N.BRERBHEEA LR Z @

(A) X3 (&)

() IEMEAEZﬁﬁ
ESRITEEEEMBRERN
FRZHEMT

2010 2009

—E-BF —EThE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx Tt

21,105 9,417

68 63

21,173 9,480

EERITETRABZHMED

BZEMNXBEHSBEEL
FHESEBE -

(B) HfthZ=HE
) BREFTEHS RXQATES

(if

u%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%é%ﬁvﬂ
REBEMKILREE M B
NABEBREERROAR
RATEREZEEBNRETH
—AWhtH-B-HEZZ
——F+=ZA=+-—HHE®E
RAEERERMT 2T

R=-Z2Z2-F+AEA AR
EXEBEANAMBESRT L
MR B A R o IRIBR
EHE EEREUAREAR
BHEEIT RAREEQAR
REGEBRHE TEAEZHFAT
B-HAEBERSHRZE
e m AT R B R
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30. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(B) OTHER ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

On 10 November 2008, 12 January 2009 and 15 October (iii)
2009, Dr. TSAI, Dr. SU Chien Cheng and Dr. SU Sh

Hsyu (collectively the “Licensors”) and the Company (the

“Licensee”) entered into a license agreement and subsequent

amendments at a consideration of HK$10 for the royalty-

free, fully paid-up, perpetual and non-revocable licence and

privilege throughout the world to use the certain trade marks

on exclusive use and non-exclusive use basis.

On 10 November 2008 and 12 January 2009, the Company (iv)
(the “Licensor”) and Dr. TSAI (the “Licensee”) entered into

a license agreement and subsequent amendments at a
consideration of HK$10 for a non-exclusive, royalty-free and
perpetual licence (including the right to grant sub-licences)
to use certain trademarks solely in relation to the operation
of resorts and hotels, for education related purposes and

in the field of healthcare and only in the jurisdiction in which
such trademarks are registered or have been applied for.
The Licensee shall offer the Company the opportunity to
participate in any new investments.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen Yu, Dr. SU Chien Cheng, (v)
Dr. SU Sh Hsyu and Natural Beauty Magazine Yang Chio

Ling as the assignors and the Company as the assignee

entered into a trade mark assignment pursuant to which the

assignors assigned certain trade marks to the assignee for a

consideration of HK$10.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen Yu as the licensor and the (Vi)
Company as the licensee entered into a licence agreement

pursuant to which the licensor granted to the licensee a

non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up, perpetual and

irrevocable license and privilege throughout the world to use

certain licensed trademarks only in respect of the businesses

conducted by the licensee for a consideration of HK$10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z—ZF+-A=+T—HLEE

31.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

A summary of the statement of financial position of the Company is as

follows:
Assets BE
Investments in subsidiaries RMBRARZRE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B A B FRIE
Other receivables H {th FE W BR X
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERERS
Liabilities afE
Other payables H i FE 1F BR 3K
Amounts due to subsidiaries A E R R E
Net assets EEFE
Capital and reserves AR G#EE
Share capital [N
Reserves (note) & 48 (B &)

31. K2 &) 2 B B AR R # 3k

ANABZBHBERRBRBENT

2010 2009
—EB-2F —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FERT
169,602 169,602

- 3,926

234,953 237,685
2,995 3,035
95,292 253,685
502,842 667,933
3,770 7,715
60,865 59,634
64,635 67,349
438,207 600,584
200,210 200,210
237,997 400,374
438,207 600,584

BAXEYNRERLE —2-—ZFFH

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2010

W E_E—EF+-A=1+T—HLEFE

31.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

31. KA A 2 B #& AR R R 3R )

Note: MEsE :
Share
Share option Retained

premium reserve profits Total

B EE ARERE R 8835 F ®at

HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T F&T FET TExT

At 1 January 2009 R=-ZEZhE—HF—H 38,024 109 477,929 516,062
Shares issued upon exercise of share options 1A 17 18 52 IR #E b5 24 1T IR 19 2,992 (625) - 2,367
Profit for the year REE =R - - 18,505 18,505
Recognition of share based payments RO AR - 541 - 541
Cancellation of share options TR R E = (25) = (25)
Dividends recognised as distribution BRI ZBRF - - (137,076) (137,076)
At 31 December 2009 RZBZEAF+ZA=+—H 41,016 = 359,358 400,374
Loss for the year RKEEZEEE - - (12,220) (12,220)
Dividends recognised as distribution BR DK Z R = - (150,157) (150,157)
At 31 December 2010 R-ZB-ZTF+=-A=+—H 41,016 = 196,981 237,997

32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents

and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs or issue of new debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
33a.

33b.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables B ERERR
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEIFBRERELEEY)
Available-for-sale investments THHERE
Financial liabilities EA =R
Amortised cost 85 R AR

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and trade and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank balances due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rates. It is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the short-term bank deposits. The
directors of the Company consider the Group’s exposure to
the interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within a short maturity period.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to interest rate risks. The directors of the
Company will continuously monitor interest rate fluctuation
and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.

3B.&£mIA
33a.£ R T E%ER

2010 2009
—F-%F =TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTET
610,761 633,895

- 3,926

97,807 62,025

3Bb.HKEREEREREEK

AEEFEEMTIACEREARE -
BEEREMBWRNR S EFRIT
R -ROTEEFEUARESZRAME
R -HESTHMTAZHBEREA
BEMERE HLEEESHTEREH
ZEREBEZERR 2 BRER
TX EEREEEEREZEZERR
BRREEZRINEERR -

% E

() FEEMRE
AEEERBRTHER KB
ARRTEFEAZREREF
RER LA THRERRITE
REAZDAFPENREAR - AQ
AEERR  AEEZFNERME
BRI FEKXR REBFERT
HEEREHAEES -

7 8 9 5 65 0 42 ) R L R 2
BEAAREHEE AL T
EESSEERAERE B
BRERERZEEHAER

B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

EZE—

ZE+T-A=+—HALEE

33.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the bank balances at the
reporting date. For bank balances, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of balances at the end of the reporting
date were outstanding for the whole year. 20 basis points
increase and 5 basis points decrease (2009: 50 basis points
increase or decrease) are used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 20 basis points higher/5 basis
points lower (2009: 50 basis points higher/lower) and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 would increase
by HK$1,151,000/decrease by HK$288,000 (2009: increase/
decrease by HK$2,797,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its bank balances.

The management adjusted the sensitivity rate from 50 basis
points to 20 basis points and 5 basis points, as applicable,
for assessing interest rate risk after considering the current
financial environment.

Currency risk
The Group has bank deposits denominated in foreign
currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

Management considers that the Group is not exposed

to significant foreign currency risk as the majority of its
transactions are either denominated in the functional currency
of the Group’s subsidiaries or in USD. Since USD is pegged
to HKD, the foreign currency risk is minimal.
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 ZE_E-ZEF+A=T—HLEEFE

33.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 33. & @l T Hum

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which may cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arisen
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

At 31 December 2010, the five largest trade receivable balances
accounted for approximately 28% (2009: 45%) of the trade
receivables and the largest trade receivables balance was
approximately 12% (2009: 18%) of the Group’s total trade
receivables.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
are mainly PRC excluding Hong Kong, which accounted for 47%
(81 December 2009: 45%), and Taiwan, which accounted for
49% (31 December 2009: 54%) of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2010.

3B. W HEREEBFERBKRGE

=EERE
RZZ-ZFF+ZRA=F+—-H &K
SERTNTAREETHEEME
sHBBEzESEERBIIEER
REMBRRBERIRZEHDE
REMEEREE RBERER
ERR AEEEEECEE—4
AE BEBEFERSE HEE
ERETHMEZERER BRIEE
ERBEHEK 2 BNER LI
FEEERERSHEEFEIRS
BRI E ZEH 2 TlE SR BAER
BA AW ERIEE L EARERIE -
Bt ARFESRE  AEEHZ
FERBRE KERD -

RBEEZFEERBER REA
ANAREREBREETRKES
TREGFEFRZBT -

R-E—ZF+-A=+—H &
REZERRRERNIEE S B
IRRH28%(ZETNEF 1 456%) »
REBEE S EWEER B & KAERER
RAEAREEE S EWRRATED
12%(ZFZENF : 18%) ©

R-ZE—ZFF+-A=+—-HB &
SERMFGEAS 2 FERBREIES
PR E(FBRINGE S E WK
HAT%(ZEBENE+=A=1+—8:
45%) K B ERIO%(ZBEZENFE+ =
B=+—8 :54%) °
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies
on its operating cash flows as a significant source of liquidity.

The Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its trade and other
payables falls within 30 to 90 days as at 31 December 2009 and
2010.

33c. Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial

assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 and 2010

are as follows:

Place of
incorporation
and operations
Name of company S
NEER REELH
Shanghai Natural Beauty Cosmetics ~ The PRC
Company Limited N
LEEAZECRRERAA
Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian The PRC
Cosmetics Company Limited HE A
LERAZ=BIRRERAA
Shanghai Natural Beauty Qingbo The PRC
Cosmetics Company Limited HEAKE

LERAZBRIRRERAT
Shanghai Natural Beauty Fansi Jewellery The PRC

Company Limited BN
LERREREHEERAR

Xi An Natural Beauty Mingyu Cosmetics  The PRC

Company Limited BN
RZEAZHFIRR

EREEAR
Qingdao Natural Beauty Omaments ~ The PRC

Company Limited N
EERAZHRAERAA

Kind of legal status

EESD

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ERERENELE

Limited liability joint venture
enterprise
EREfAELE

Limited liability joint venture
enterprise
ERERGELE

Limited liability joint venture
enterprise
ERERRELE

Limited liability joint venture
enterprise
ERERRELE

Limited liability joint venture
enterprise
ERERGELE

34. B N AIFE1E

R-ZZNER=-F-FF+=A
Et—B AQFMBIRFBNT

Proportion of

nominal value

of issued capital

Registered capital/issued
and fully paid ordinary
share capital

HMER/ BB
RARERRA

1S$29,980,000
% 429,980,000

RMB8,000,000
AR#8,0000007

RMB5,000,000
AR #5,000,0007T

RMB500,000

ARH500,0007

RMB3,000,000
AR#3,0000007

RMB4,000,000
AR #4,000,0007

held by

the Company
and its
subsidiaries
ERAR
HitEAR
BT
RAEERA

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Attributable to

the Group
33 LT

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

IEER

Production and sale of skin care
and beauty products
EERBERERZRER

Wholesale and retail of skin
care and beauty products;
provision of beauty
treatments

HERTERERZDER:
REZRER

\Wholesale and retail of skin care
and beauty products
HEREEERREDER

Sale of jewellery, craftwork,
adomment, leather and
horologe

HERE T85 #6n-
REREH

Sale of skin care and beauty
products and related
instruments; provision of skin
care and beauty consulting

HEEERZREMR
RESEN . RERERE
ELN]

Sale of skin care and beauty
products and adornment
HEEBRZRERMRED

an
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34.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. Kt B A Bl 5E B @)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
Place of Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
incorporation and fully paid ordinary ERAR
and operations share capital  EMEAF  Attributable to
Name of company Ef AT Kind of legal status HMEK/BRT  FEERA the Group  Principal activity
AAER REEHY EE5 S RAREERE RAEELH AEEEE TEEH
Chengdu Natural Beauty Cosmetics ~ The PRC Limited liability joint venture RMB2,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty
Company Limited B AR enterprise AR #2,500,0007 products; provision of beauty
RPEAZERERAT BREFGELE treatments and skin care and
beauty consulting and training
HEEERZAER R
EERENERUR
ERBRARSE
Hainan Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC Limited liability joint venture RMB2,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty
Company Limited HE A enterprise AR #2,500,0007 products; provision of beauty
BEEAZERERAT BREAAELE freatments and beauty
consulting and training
HEBRRZRER:
REZREET
ERFARS
Shenzhen Natural Beauty Cosmetics ~ The PRC Limited liability joint venture RMB4,000,000 90% 90%  Sale of cosmetic products
Company Limited HEAE enterprise AR #4,000,0007 and provision of beauty
FTERAZRRERLR BREfAELE {reatments
HEVHERRRMHEZRE
i
Wuhan Natural Beauty Cutural The PRC Limited liability joint venture RMB2,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products
Development Company Limited HE AR enterprise AR #2,500,0007 and provision of beauty
HEERZRNNCERERAR BEREFAELE freaiments
HEVHERRRMHEZRE
i
Beijing Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC Limited liability joint venture RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products
Company Limited HEAE enterprise A B #20,000,00070 and provision of beauty
LREREMERERAT BREMAELE freatments
HEVHERRRMHEZRE
i
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34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. M B A Bl 715 )
Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
Place of Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
incorporation and fully paid ordinary ERAR
and operations share capital  EMEAF  Attributable to
Name of company Ef AT Kind of legal status HMEK/BRT  FEERA the Group  Principal activity
AAER REEHY EES D RAREERE RAEELH AEEELE ITEER
Suzhou Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC Limited liability joint venture RMB1,200,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty
Company Limited HEAE enterprise AR #1200,0007 products and related
ENEAZLERERAT FERERGELE instruments
HEERRZZERR
REEM
LEERAZERIERERAT  ThePRC Limited liability joint venture RMB500,000 100% 100%  Wholesale and retall of skin care
B AR enterprise AR #500,0007 and beauty products
AREFGELE HERBEERRZRER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli Cosmetics The PRC Foreign investment US$1,480,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Company Limited (Formerly known BB K enterprise with limited % £1,480,0007C and beauty products
as Shanghai Full-Beauty Cosmetics liabity ERREERERZRER
Company Limited) BEREMNELE
LEERZERRERERAR
(ABLEERILHRBRAR)
LREAEARHREERAT  ThePRC Limited fabifty jint venture RMB10,000,000 51% 51%  Sale of cosmetic products
B AR enterprise AK%10,000,0007 and provision of beauty
EREfAELE treatments
HEVHMERRRHEZRE
B
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Taiwan Limited liability company NT$201,000,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Company Limited (Formerly aE BRERLA #4%201,000,00070 and beauty products
known as Natural Beauty Cosmetics HERBEERRZRER
Company Limited)
EAZENNERABRAR
FRBAZLARRAERAR)
Tian Ran Mei Bio-Technology Taiwan Limited liability company NT$32,000,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Company Limited hE BREAAT 5 & %32,000,0007 and beauty products
ARZENRERABRAT EERHEERRERER
Huei Yao Investment Company Limited ~ Taiwan Limited liability company NT$122,043,420 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRREROBRAR = BREAAT 31 5%122,043 42070 REER
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139



140

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma B E|RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
E-E-BFT-AST-HLFE

34.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company

ARER

Beauty Essen Cosmetics
Company Limited
KAEBRAERAT

Place of
incorporation
and operations
Ef A
REEHY

Taiwan

ot
As

Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Company ~ Taiwan

Limited

EAREXANALERDERAT

Belem Holdings Scin. Bhd.

Bilion Synergy Sdn. Bhd.

Ice Crystal Management Limited

KEEERRAR

Great Glamour Company Limited

Next Success International Limited

Fortune Investment Global Limited

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology
(Hong Kong) Company Limited
BAZENNR(ER)BRAA

qE

Malaysia
EREE

Malaysia
SRAD

British Virgin Islands

('BVI")
ABEAREE
(ZB&AR
B8
BVI
ARERREE
BVI
ABEAREE
BVI
ARERREE
Hong Kong
£k

Kind of legal status

EESD
Limited liability company

BREAAA

Limited liability company
BREAAAT

Limited liability company
AREEAT

Limited liability company
BREMAAA

Limited liability company
BREAAT

Limited liability company
BREAAT

Limited liability company
BREMAAT

Limited liability company
BREAAT

Limited liability company
BREMAAA

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010

Proportion of

nominal value

of issued capital

Registered capital/issued
and fully paid ordinary
share capital
ifEx/2Rf
RAREERE

NT$1,000,000
# & #1,000,0007

NT$50,000,000
# & 50,000,000

MYR68,609,858

Class B shares
BRERA LY
68,609,858

MYR10,000 Class A shares
AW 55 2R 7 25 10,0007

MYR2
ERFTET

US$52,000
452,000

US850,000
Z£50,0001

US$100
Z4£1007

US850,000
Z£50,0001

HK$10,000
A #10,0007

held by

the Company
and its
subsidiaries
NG D
HKEAR
FEERT
RAEERLA

100%

94%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Attributable to

the Group
AEEELR

100%

94%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

34. [ff B 1 7] 5 15 ()

Principal activity

EE:3 3

Provision of beauty consulting
and training
REXREARE

Provision of beauty consulting
and training
RUZABARSE

Investment holding

REZR

Wholesale of skin care and
beauty products

HREERXRER

Investment holdling

REER

Investment holdling

REER

Investment holding

REEZR

Investment holdling

REER

Sale of cosmetic products
and provision of beauty
treatments

BEVMERRRHEZAE
B
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34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. M B A Bl 715 )
Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
Place of Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
incorporation and fully paid ordinary ERAR
and operations share capital  EMEAE  Attributable to
Name of company Ef A Kind of legal status HMEK/BRT  FEERA the Group  Principal activity
AAER REELY EE5 S RAREERE RAEELH AEEEE TEER
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology (Macao) Macau Limited liability company MOP25,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products
Company Limited BF BERERAT B[ #25,0007 and provision of beauty
BAZENNE(RM)ERAR freatments
BEVHERRRHZAE
i
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited  Hong Kong Limited liability company HK$200,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BAZHEZRERAT £ BREAAT #1200,0007T REZR
Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med The PRC Limited liability company US$2,600,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of health
Company Limited HEAE joint venture enterprise %£2,600,0007C supplement
LERRZENBEERAA ERERGELE HERHERRRR
LEBAZZANRERLA The PRC Limited fiabifty company RMB6,000,000 100% 100%  Beauty consuling; wholesale
HE A joint venture enterprise AR #6,000,0007 and retal of skin care and
AREASELS beauty products
ZREA HBRBEER
ZREm
Spring Perfect Biomedical Taiwan Limited liability company NT$ 6,500,000 100% 94%  Provision of professional
Company Limited aE joint venture enterprises ¥ 2 %16,500,0007 medical care products
EEEREERNBRAR BREMAELE HESXBEEEER
Forever Young Recreation Resort Taiwan Limited liability company NT$10,000,000 100% 100%  Beauty consulting; wholesale
Company Limited =h- BREMLR #15 #10,000,0007C (Note) and retall of skin care and
EAIEERBEERAERAT () beauty products
ZARA BBRIERR
RERER
Spring Rejuvenation Biomedical Taiwan Limited liability company NT$15,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of hair care products
Company Lid =) BREMERH 3 & 15,000,007 (Note) HEREER
EEEREBRABRAR (FizE)

BAXEYNRERLE —2-—ZFFH
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S

Name of company

ARER

Nanjing Natural Beauty Cosmetics
Company Limited

BRAREEREREELT

Kunshan Natural Beauty Sanlian
Cosmetics Company Limited

BLEAZ=BARRERAT

Changchun Natural Beauty Cosmetics

Company Limited
REBAZCHRERDE

Mudanjiang Natural Beauty Cosmetics

Company Limited
HRImBRE

tHRERAT

Place of
incorporation
and operations
Ef A
REEHY

The PRC
REARE

The PRC
hE AR

The PRC
REARE

The PRC
SN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
EE+_A=Z+-HLEEE

34.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Kind of legal status

EE5 2

Limited liability joint venture
enterprise
ERERCELE

Limited liability joint venture
enterprise

AREfAELE

Limited liability joint venture
enterprise
ERERGELE

Limited liability joint venture
enterprise

BREfAELE

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010

34.MfB R =

Proportion of

nominal value

of issued capital

held by

the Company

and its

Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
andfully paid ordinary A2 AR
share capital ~ EMEA A
HMELS/BRT  HBERA
RAREERE RAEELH
RMB2,000,000 100%
AR #2,000,0007 (Note)
(HizE)

RMB1,500,000 100%
AR #1,500,0007T (Note)
g

RMB,500,000 100%
AR#1,500,0007 (Note)
g

RMB800,000 100%

AR #800,0007 (Notg)
g

7] 5 15 (&)

Attributable to

the Group
AEEELR

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

EE:3 3

Sale of cosmetic products
and provision of beauty
treatments

HEVHERRRMEDE
B

Sale of cosmetic products
and provision of beauty
treatments

HEVHMERRRHEZRE
B

Sale of skin care and beauty
products; provision of beauty
treatments and skin care and
beauty consulting

HEERRXBER
REXAEEAEER

e

B

Sale of cosmetic products
and provision of beauty
treatments

BEVMERRRHEZAE
i



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
n'/j—\ /jﬁ#&%ﬁj’ HE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
 E_E-EFE+_A=+—-HLEEFE

34.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. Bt B 2 Bl 5 15 )

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
Place of Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
incorporation and fully paid ordinary ERAR
and operations share capital  EMEAA  Attributable to
Name of company ERR Kind of legal status HMEK/BRT  FECEA the Group  Principal activity
AAER REEHE EE5 S RAREERE RAEELH AEEEL TERH
Fuzhou Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC Limited liability joint venture RMB1,500,000 90% 90%  Wholesale and retail of skin care
Company Limited B AR enterprise AK%1500,0007 (Note) and beauty products and
ENEAZLERERAT EREAAL Y (Bt &) related instruments; provision
of skin care and beauty
consulting
HERBEERRZ2ER
RARBEY RIEER
RERZEH
Haerbin Sanlian Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability joint venture RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products
Cosmetics Company Limited e AR enterprise AK%1,000,0007 (Note) and provision of beauty
REE=HEAZHRERAA EREFAELE (BE) freaiments
HEVHERRRMZEE
i
Wenzhou Natural Beauty Cosmetics ~ The PRC Limited liability joint venture RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products
Company Limited HEAE enterprise AK%2,000,0007T (Note) and provision of beauty
BNTERZRRERAR FRERRELE (BE) freaiments
HEVHERRRMZEE
i
Note: The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2010. Mz ZMBARARBZ-_Z—ZF+=A
=+ —BLEFEBUHEM
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at REARNEREMER  SEHMELT
the end of the year or at any time during the year. BEMERESERESE-

BAXEYNRERLE —2-—ZFFH
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Financial Summary

LR A

RESULTS

REVENUE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

A

B 35 A1 728 A

FRGBLR X

REEEF

FE4h

ARBEAA
R ES

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

HEE
meE

KABERA
P 45 #E 2%

RS

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2010

ES

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-BLEE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—EEREFE ZEZTLF ZE2EENFE —ZZETIEF | ZE-ZF
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$°000
FET THET FE T THET FHET
363,746 450,147 592,701 538,092 485,389
174,453 208,029 308,477 186,753 75,848
(51,641) (29,248) (69,898) (42,830) (45,138)
122,812 178,781 238,579 143,923 30,710
123,198 178,707 238,477 149,636 31,303
(386) 74 102 (5,713) (593)
122,812 178,781 238,579 143,923 30,710
EEREE
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—EEREFE ZEETLF ZE2EENFE —ZZETIEF | ZE-ZF
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET FE T TET FHET

997,660 1,032,314 1,026,226 999,319 940,931
(118,489) (116,663) (169,819) (130,491) (158,297)
879,171 915,651 856,407 868,828 782,634
878,739 909,626 849,960 868,082 782,487
432 6,025 6,447 746 147
879,171 915,651 856,407 868,828 782,634
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natural beauty

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RFRERSTMRLZERAT)
Stock Code %17 X5 : 00157

This report is printed on environmentally friendly paper
REBIARIRATENSY
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